



Systems Reference Library

IBM 1231, 1232 Optical Mark Page Readers

This publication describes the functions, controls, principles of operation, data flow, and programming for the IBM 1231 and 1232 Optical Mark Page Readers. Special features available are explained. Also included is a section on the IBM 534 Model 3 Card Punch.











This publication, form A21-9012-3, replaces and obsoletes form A21-9012-2. Information from technical newsletter N21-0023 is included. Changes to text are indicated by a vertical line to the left of the column. Changes to illustrations are indicated by a bullet (\bullet) to the left of the figure title.

.

Copies of this and other IBM publications can be obtained through IBM Branch Offices. Address comments concerning the content of this publication to: IBM, Product Publications Department, Rochester, Minn. 55901.

Contents

IBM 1231 and 1232 Optical Mark Page Readers

Page Readers	5
Data Sheet	8
Data Sheet Terminology	8
Marking the Data Sheet	8

Principles of Operation 10
Document Path
Feed Hopper 10
Feed and Transport Mechanism
Selector Station and Stackers
Reading 12
Read Unit
Mark Recognition and Discrimination
Data Flow
IBM 1231 Data Flow 13
IBM 1231 Message Format
IBM 1232 Data Flow 14
IBM 1232 Message Format 15
IBM 1232/534 Synchronization Check
Field Checking 16
Alphabetic Coding 19
Controls
Keys and Switches
Lights

Programming	22
Program Control Sheet	22
On-Line Systems Programming	24
On-Line Program Instructions	26

Operating Procedures	27
IBM 1232 Setup	27
	27
IBM 1231 Setup	27
Restart Procedures	28
Special Features	1
Master Mark Feature	1
Segmented Word Feature	1
Special Card Features	
Multiple Spread-Card Feature	2
Unit Record Card Feature 3	4
IBM 534 Model 3 Card Punch	38
Punch Controls	38
•	38
Throughput Factors	40
1231 Throughput	40
· ·	40 40
Document Design and Specifications	1 2
Specifications	12
Paper Requirements 4	2
Burst Continuous Forms	
Ink Requirements 4	4
Document Format Requirements	4
Printing Requirements 4	4
Design Guides	1 6
Document Gage	19
Index	51

.



IBM 1231 with IBM 1401 Data Processing System



.

IBM 1232 with IBM 534 Model 3 Card Punch

IBM 1231 and 1232 Optical Mark Page Readers

During the past several years many changes and advances have been made in the field of data processing. Computer access times have diminished from many milliseconds to a few microseconds. Printing speeds have risen from 100 lines a minute to well over 1000 lines a minute. Programming systems have become problem oriented, easier and cheaper to use.

Although these significant advances have taken place in the processing and output areas of data processing, no significant improvements have been made in the methods by which source data is recorded and entered into these systems.

The IBM 1231 and 1232 Optical Mark Page Readers represent a breakthrough in the area of source recording and data entry. They provide a facility for recording the data at its source, in a form that can be converted directly into data processing language.

The IBM Optical Mark Page Readers read positional marks made by an ordinary lead pencil on paper documents. The positional marks are converted into a machine-usable form by the 1231 and entered directly into a data processing system; or the marks are read and the information punched into cards by the 1232.

Documents are read in the 1231 and the 1232 at a maximum rate of 2000 sheets per hour. Throughput for the 1232 depends upon the format of the data sheet, the number of card columns to be punched, and the number of cards per data sheet. The 1231 throughput depends on computer programming, the feed mode (Continuous or On-Demand), and the method of grouping the data on the data sheet. (When identification data and detail data are interspersed and read into 1231 storage, more program steps are needed to separate the data in the computer.)

The 1231 (Figure 1), therefore, acts as an on-line input device to data processing systems, such as, IBM 1401, IBM 1440, and IBM 1460.

The 1231 is a fully-buffered machine that operates at an average document cycle of 1730ms in continuous feed mode. Variations in data-sheet feeding can cause a document cycle to be as short as 1585ms. The maximum time to transfer data from the 1231 buffered storage to the computer is 7.2ms. Therefore, 1585ms minus 7.2ms, or 1577ms can be safely used as processing time by the computer. Thus, 1231 sub-routines can be inserted into routines of other applications.

The IBM 1232, when operating with an IBM 534



Figure 1. IBM 1231 Optical Mark Page Reader

Model 3 Card Punch, can convert data into punched cards directly from the source documents. Conversion speed can be as high as 64,000 characters per hour, or 800 fully-punched cards per hour.

Optical Mark Page Readers are ideally suited for applications such as: order entry, payroll, accounts payable, inventory control, sales analysis, and general ledger work.

The 8 $1/2'' \ge 11''$ data sheet is a versatile document, adaptable to many applications. One of its uses may be as an order entry form (Figure 2). Insurance companies could use the data sheet in areas such as; debit route accounting, policy applications, or policy rating (Figure 3). Medical centers may find the data sheet and its subsequent processing convenient for patient billing, clinical analysis, or medical histories. Other areas of business such as; marketing research and survey companies, schools and stock brokers will also find applications for the data sheet and its processing.

By means of stored program controls, the IBM 1231 and the IBM 1232 can:

- Control specific data to be stored.
- Control data that is to be repetitively punched into cards.
- Identify the end of a field.



Ξ

Ξ

100 _

.....

100

.....

... 100

80 80 100 =

.....

.

6

a blac	your mar k lead p	ks with encil.		ANY	INDUSTRIAL			APAN	IY		nse co nks cl			any	
DATE OF PO			POLICY	NUMBER						_					
										P					
Your FULL	NAME (Print									Ĕ					
	ST BAHET	(MADEL	C INTACT		LAST NAME)			-	,	L C		•			•
RESIDENCE	(Print) NO.	\$	TREET		EF.0. FLOOR					ř					
CITY OR T	OWN			ZONE	TATE APT	1									
Place of Bi		TATE	A DATE OF	-	AGE LAST Birthday					N					
				AY YEAR	ANDE LANST BETHING	•		-	• •	м		•		-	•
						-				B					
Married		Widowed		Single	•					E					
What is yo	our								JLL NAME)	~	-2111		:::::	AG	
Do you not	weight?	nce with the	WY LIFE		lbs.										
INSURANCE	COMPANY?														
			YES	NO											
IF YES, W	HICHP					14. REL7	TIONSHIP	OFBE	NEFICIARY						
		\$ 250	\$ 800	\$ 750	\$ 1000	WER	нц	emo	WOTHER		FATHER		801		
POLICY A			FAG	L AMOUNT	PURCHASED	DAUGHTE		ILD.	BROTHER		NOTER				
::::: WL 78	(e) PLAN		8 25		\$ 75	COULIN		ECE	HEPHEW			SPECIF	Y ON 8	ACK	
	105		\$ 100	6 250	\$800	15. Have	you in f	he pest	five years		fied a d	octor f	or a se	erioue	
IOPL	30E	E40	8780	81000		dise	na, alimos	it, er d	isobility, ot nd such car	her th	ion e co	mmon co	eld, virs	us or	
			11111	100		which	exceede	d a per	ied of one	week	9				
	STATE BOPL	IIIII SOPL				1			YES			80			
	17.00	MONTHLY	QUARTERLY	SEM - AND	UAL ANDRUAL	eny If y	other co os, oxplei	npeny? n on b:	other the	appi	ied for YES		16 6r 160		
2. CLASSIFIC	ATION RATING (QUARTERLY	SENI-MO	UAL ANDRUAL	en y if y	ffored a other cor es, explai	npeny? n on b reside	other the sck. in same	appi	ied for YES				-00
TANDARD	RATUS	NONTHLY RATING 3	GUARTERLY OTHER S	PECIFY ON	BACK	en y if y	ffored a other co os, explai applicant fict office	n on b roside is loc	other the nck. i in same atod?	appi stata ccupati	vics vics				66
TANDARD	RATUS 1	RATING S	OTHER S	PECIFY ON	UAL ANNUAL BACK	en y If y IB. Does distr	ffered a other con est, explai applicant rist office	npany? n on b roside is loc	other the nck. in sume ated? 	appi	ied for YES in which		763		
TĂNDĂRD	RATUS :	RATINE 3	OUARTERLY OTHER S IS	PECIFY ON	UAL ANDRUAL BACK 	en y if y 18. Does distr	ffered a other con est, explai applicant rist office	npany? n on bi reside is loc	other the nck. in sume ated ? 	state state	Y25		180 783		
1 0 1	RATING (NONTHLY RATING 3 	OUARTERLY OTHER 1 IS	PECIFY ON	UAL ANNUL BACK 	en y if y, i8. Does distr 0 19. Have	ffered a other cou es, explai applicant fict office	npeny? n on b reside is loc 2 2 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	other than the sume ated? 3 4 17 OF FIEL owe applier	ccupato conce .D. RE	VES in which of PRESEN o make	TATIVE ell	160 VEV		
TANDARD	RATING 	MONTHLY RATING 3 ====================================	GUARTERLY OTTIGER 1 IS	PECFY ON	UAL ANDRUAL BACK 	an y If y, 18. Daes distr 0 19. Have quet	ffered a sther cou- es, exptei applicant rict office 	npany? n on b rosida is loc 2 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	other than the same is same ated ?	CCUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE	VIS in which a which B CPRESEN o make	TATIVE Suro all	785 785 7	and 60	
	RATURE 	NONTRLY RATING 3 = ===== TEN ========= ==========================	GUARTERLY OTHER 1 IS	PECIFY ON	UAL ANNUL BACK 	eny If y IB. Does distr IB. Does distr IB. Does distr Do y Do y 	ffered a sther coi es, explai applicant rist office 	npeny? n on bi reside is loc 2 REPOR thed ab answe y that RESENT	other that nok. In sume atad?	CCUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE	VIS In which In which Of PRESEN Or make Or make Or make Or make	TATIVE sure all rcs d on t	NO VES 7	and 60	
	RATING (2.3 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.4	NONTREY RATING 3 =	GUARTERLY OTHER 1 IS	PECUTY ON 1	NAL ASSUAL BACK 9. 9. FEET INCHES POUNDS	eny If y IB. Does distr IB. Does distr IB. Does distr Do y Do y 	ffered a sther coi es, explai applicant rist office 	npeny? n on bi reside is loc 2 REPOR thed ab answe y that RESENT	other than the same is same ated ?	CCUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE	VES in which in which	TATIVE Surve all rcs ind on t roct co	YES YES items his RE opy of	and 60 EPORT	
	AATING 1 	MONTREY RATING 3 =	QUARTERLY OTHER 1 IS	PECIFY ON 1	UNL ASSUL ACK 	eny If y IB. Does distr IB. Does distr IB. Does distr Do y Do y 	ffered a sther coi es, explai applicant rist office 	npeny? n on bi reside is loc 2 REPOR thed ab answe y that RESENT	other that nok. In sume atad?	CCUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE	VIS In which In which Of PRESEN Or make Or make Or make Or make	TATIVE Surve all rcs ind on t roct co	NO VES 7	and 60 EPORT	
	AATING 1 	NONTREY RATING 3 =	QUARTERLY OTHER 1 IS	PECUTY ON 1	NAL ASSUAL BACK	eny If y IB. Does distr IB. Does distr IB. Does distr Do y Do y 	ffered e other con es, explai applicant rict office 	npeny? n on bi reside is loc 2 REPOR thed ab answe y that RESENT	other that nok. In sume atad?	CCUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE COUPATE	VES in which in which	TATIVE Surve all rcs ind on t roct co	YES YES items his RE opy of	and 60 EPORT	
1 0 1	RATING (NONTHLY RATING 3 	OUARTERLY OTHER 1 IS	PECIFY ON	UAL ANNUL BACK 	en y if y, i8. Does distr 0 19. Have	ffered a other cou es, explai applicant fict office	npeny? n on b reside is loc 2 2 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	other than the sume ated? 3 4 17 OF FIEL owe applier	ccupato conce .D. RE	VES in which of PRESEN o make	TATIVE ell	160 VEV		
I hereby r UNTIL ANI The foot the contro separt in respacting	RATION (uoittia natilité s	euuritizety officient officient is		UNL ASSUL ACK 	If y If y If so is to be in the is to be if y is to be is	ffered e other con applicant applicant ist office ist office	npsny? n on bi reside is loc 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	ether thei in sume i in sume i	D REE CONFATS CONFATS CONFATS CONF CONFATS CONF CONFATS CONF CONFATS CONFA	ied for V25 in which on CPREst on Conteins Compension Comp	TA Tive Burro ell TCS Md on t roct od ES TO THE It form ty, hos t ny prod	VEY VEY Items 1 Thems 1 Thems 1 Thems 1 The RE SUM II The base	and 60 PORT NO NSURED sis of on may be	
AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND A	ALTING 	uoittia natilié s	euxiertranur official s ifficial i	PECHTY ON I 	ALL ASSUAL ACK IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	If y If y If Does distr 0 19 19 19 19 19 19 10 19 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	ffered e arber cot applicant applicant ist offica ist o	A on bin reside is loc answer REPOR REPOR REPOR REPOR Store and answer that ATIVE . www.chass S OF 1 bind th 11y by 1 a poil	other their sea of the	CCOPATE State CCOPATE CODE CODE CODE CODE CODE CODE CODE COD	ied for VES is which on the set of the se	TATIVE sure ell rest ed rest e	VEY VEY Items to thems to the RE substitution SUM if the base	and 60 PORT NO NSURED sis of on may be	
AMDIAND	RATION I RETION I RETIONI I RETIONI I RETIONI I RETIONI I RETIONI I RETIONI I	woithing Ratifield s Ratifield	QUARTERLY OTTIGE IS IS <	PECHTY ON I 	ALL ASSUL ACK ACK FEET INCHES POUNDS I.I. I.I. ICC ASSIST CONDAS ICC ASSIST ICC	eny if y if constant if cons	ffered e sher co so ester co applicant applicant control of the control o	npeny? a on bi- reside is loc a REPOR REPOR REPOR ATIVE . ATIVE . wrches S OF 1 bind th ity by I a poil	other their sea of the	CCOPATE State CCOPATE CODE CODE CODE CODE CODE CODE CODE COD	ied for VES is which on the set of the se	TATIVE sure ell rest ed rest e	VEY VEY Items to thems to the RE substitution SUM if the base	and 60 PORT NO NSURED sis of on may be	
AMDIAND	ALTING I 	uoittia natilié s	GUARTICALY OTTIGAL IS :: : : : : : : : : : : : :	A	ALL ASSUAL ACK IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	eny if y if constant if cons	ffered e sher co so ester co applicant applicant control of the control o	npeny? a on bi- reside is loc a REPOR REPOR REPOR ATIVE . ATIVE . wrches S OF 1 bind th ity by I a poil	other their sea of the	CCOPATE State CCOPATE CODE CODE CODE CODE CODE CODE CODE COD	ied for VES is which on the set of the se	TATIVE sure ell rest ed rest e	VEY VEY Items to thems to the RE substitution SUM if the base	and 60 PORT NO NSURED sis of on may be	

OLLEC	TION WEEK	935	5		DAY	2		DEBIT	115	2
	FI	NANCIAL	CERTIF	CATION	•	1	. l.		.1	
										E
AGENT'	\$ JRE						<u></u>			· · · · · · ·
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·								ana.	·
REGORD BK. PAGE	PREV. WKS. COLLECTION	D.L.P.	ARR.	ADV.	AMOUNT	PREMIUM		NUMBER	₹ OF	PAYMENTS
2034	296	5933	2			296				OTHER
2035	295	5933	2			295				
2038		5930	5			246				
2043	10	5934	1			10				
2045	337	5934	1			337				
2150	530	5934	1			265				OTHE R
2157	362	5934	1			362		<u> </u>		
2165	110	5933	2			110				
2180		5935	+	ļ		145				
2182	105	5935				105				
2185		5935	1			142	nin ni	<u> </u>		07NER
2190		5932	3			89				
2195		5932	3			225				
2197		5932	3			70				
2198	450	5933	2			225				
2203		5929	6			120	<u></u>			OTHER
2209		5934	1			30		L.,000, 10 <u>0</u>		
2210	120	5933	2			120				
2213	105	5933	2			105	<u></u>			
2214	197	5934								
2215	30	5939		4		30	de de	i nhi nhi		OTHER
2216	125	5934	1			120				
2218	50	5934 5934	1			50		• ••••• ••••		
									11222	
2225	120	5934	1	-		120			2000	
2230	130	5940	+	5		130				OTNER
2240		5941	+	6		49 10				
2241	255	5933 5933	2			255	<u>. 1949 - 1949</u>		*****	
2250	255	5933	1			255				
	+		+			+				
2255	150	5934	1			150	nin nin		<u>.</u>	OTHER
2260	336 76	5934 5934	$\frac{1}{1}$			336 76				
2262			1							
2262 2275	282	5934 5934	$\frac{1}{1}$			282				

Figure 3. Sample Accounting and Application Data Sheets

1.0

A 1231/1232 can be programmed to recognize each part (field) of a data sheet on an individual basis. Each field can then be checked for the various conditions under which a document can be selected.

A Master Mark special feature provides group identification when several data sheets are to be processed as a group.

Data Sheet

The document used as input to the Optical Mark Page Readers is an $8 \ 1/2'' \ x \ 11''$ sheet of paper called a "data sheet". The data sheet contains a maximum of one thousand mark positions. The mark positions are arranged in as many as fifty rows, each row containing a maximum of twenty mark positions.

Each row is divided into two groups of ten mark positions each. The ten mark positions are called "words". Each word is divided into two groups of five mark positions called "segments". Consequently, each data sheet can have a maximum of 50 rows, 100 words, and 200 segments. A data sheet normally contains five rows per inch, but may have less.

Timing marks are printed along the right-hand edge of each data sheet. These marks are used to synchronize the motion of the document with the various units of the reader. Each word on the data sheet has an associated timing mark.

Words within each row of the data sheet are divided into two groups: odd-numbered words and evennumbered words. Odd words are on the left, even words on the right. The timing mark for an odd-numbered word is .636" above the mark positions of the word; the timing mark for an even-numbered word is .536" above the mark positions of the word.

Whenever a new data sheet is to be designed, three standard layout forms are available for use as design guides. Form X20-8043 is designed with five rows per vertical inch; Form X20-8044 is designed with four rows per inch; and Form X20-8045 is designed with three rows per inch. Any combination of these forms may be used as long as the timing mark relationship to the rows is maintained, and the rows are never printed closer than the minimum spacing of .200". Two timing marks should be printed for every row of words as these timing marks are used to trigger the read head activity from odd-word to even-word to odd-word, etc.

Input documents must adhere to specific dimensions and tolerances. When a new document is designed or ordered, document layout, paper, and ink requirements should be reviewed. Before large quantities of documents are ordered, a sample of the document should be sent to the nearest IBM Branch Office for review.

Data Sheet Terminology

- Timing Mark: Rectangular marks preprinted on the data sheet in non-reflective ink. The timing mark is used to synchronize the motion of the document with the various units of the 1231/1232. Timing marks are located on the right-hand side of the data sheet (Figure 4).
- Mark Positions: Areas printed in reflective ink that designate where marks are to be placed. A nonreflective mark in this area is read as a word or bit.
- *Words:* Ten mark positions of a row. Words on the left half of the data sheet are odd words; words on the right half of the data sheet are even words.
- Segments: Mark positions 0 through 4, or 5 through 9 of any word.
- Non-Reflective Inks: A type of ink that is sensed by the 1231/1232. Usually, timing marks are the only non-reflective printing on the data sheet. The recommended non-reflective ink is black. See Ink Requirements.
- Reflective Inks: A type of ink not sensed by the 1231/1232. Reflective inks are used for headings, data sheet instructions, mark position outlines and any other data that is not to be read.

Marking The Data Sheet

Marks that are to be read by an IBM 1231/1232 must be dark enough for positive machine-reading, yet erase easily and completely. For these reasons, a number 2 pencil is recommended.

Marks made with a number 1 pencil, or an IBM Electrographic pencil^{*}, are difficult to erase; even after an erasure is made, a residue remains that could be read as a mark by the machine.

Erasures should always be made carefully and completely. Any incomplete erasure could be read as a mark.

When response positions are marked, the mark should be made the full length of the mark position, and should fill at least two-thirds of the space between the top and bottom of the guide lines. A mark that extends no more than 1/16'' past the ends of the response position is acceptable in all but the last even-word position (next to the timing marks). In this position, a mark must not extend beyond the right end of the guide lines or it could be read as a timing mark. This would result in erroneous reading of the rest of the data sheet.



* These six control timing marks are used for counter read out controls in the IBM 1230.

Figure 4. Data Sheet Format

Principles Of Operation

The IBM Optical Mark Page Readers use sonic delay lines for storing controls and data. Controls are marked on the regular data sheet and entered into storage during the program load cycle. This data sheet is referred to as a program control sheet.

As data sheets are read, data is stored in the delay lines according to instructions from the program control sheet. Each word or segment to be stored must be programmed for entry into storage.

When a data sheet passes under the photo-electric read head, each word or segment is tested (according to preset switch settings) for conditions, such as; nomark, multi-mark, or other-than-one. Any word or segment that does not pass the requirements of these switch settings causes the data sheet to be routed to the select stacker.

Storage data is available for readout to either a data processing system or to an IBM 534 Model 3 Card Punch. The cards punched in a 534 operation can be used as input to either a data processing system or a unit record machine.

Document Path

The data sheet begins its movement through the Optical Mark Page Reader when it is fed from the hopper. The document then passes under a read head; is transported through the transport area, past a selection station, and on into one of the two gravity stackers (Figure 5).

Feed Hopper

Data sheets are placed in the hopper (Figure 6) with the side to be read facing up; the top edge of the data sheet positioned to feed first. Data sheets feed from the top of the stack. The platform on which the documents are held raises automatically to maintain proper feeding. Whenever documents are added to the hopper, document feeding must be discontinued and the platform lowered to accommodate the additional supply of documents. If the stop key is pressed or any emergency stop switch activity occurs, the document platform drops immediately. The stop key stops only the feeding of the documents. An emergency stop (jam, misfeed, timing mark check, etc.) halts the feed rolls, as well as document feeding.

The capacity of the hopper is approximately 600 documents. When documents are processed at the rate of 2,000 per hour, the hopper capacity is great enough for 18 minutes of continuous operation without operator attention. If feeding is attempted and for some reason,

such as an empty hopper, a document is not fed within five seconds, the entire feed unit stops operating and the hopper platform drops.

Feed and Transport Mechanism

The feed unit of an Optical Mark Page Reader contains a set of four picker belts, two restraint belts, and a separator roll. The transport area contains the feed rolls. As the feed rolls move a document through the transport area, the document passes a selector station and moves on into either the normal or select stacker.

A depression of the reset key brings documents up to the feeding level and starts feed roll and restraint belt activity. When the start key is pressed, picker belt and drive roll activity starts. Picker belts and the separator roll are operated by the picker belt clutch. The picker belts ride on top of the stack of documents in the hopper, and move documents into the separator station.

At the separator station, a drive roller acts upon the top document to move it forward, while restraint belts move the balance of the documents backward. This creates a shearing action, causing separation of documents. The top document feeds, and the lower documents are restrained. The restraint belts move at a slower speed and have a lesser effect on documents than the drive roller. Therefore, whenever both the drive roller and the restraint belts act upon the same document, the document continues to move forward.

The first set of feed rolls is located about one and onehalf inches ahead of the leading edges of the documents in the hopper. A document sensing device, just under the first top roll, senses the presence of documents. As documents pass, they are recognized by this sensing device, causing the picker belts and drive roll to stop. When the trailing edge of the document passes the sensing device, circuits are activated which cause another feed cycle. Consequently, if the feed mode switch (1231) is set for continuous feeding, documents feed approximately one and one-half inches apart.

When the 1232 is operating with the IBM 534 Model 3 Card Punch, documents feed as just described, but are controlled by the program card in the 534. The picker belts do not operate until two conditions are satisfied: (1) the 534 has issued a feed call, and (2) the previous document has passed the document sensing device in the 1232.

All documents pass the read station as they move through the transport mechanism. By the time the leading edge of a document has reached the drive rolls just ahead of the selector station, all reading has been com-



Figure 5. Document Path

pleted. Drive rolls beyond the read station accelerate the document to ensure proper stacking.

Selector Station and Stackers

An Optical Mark Page Reader has two stackers, Normal and Select, into which it can direct documents (Figure 7).



Figure 6. Feed Hopper

The normal stacker holds about 600 documents. The select stacker, which is just above the normal stacker, holds about 50 documents. Both stackers are equipped with full-stacker switches that stop document feeding when either stacker is filled.

As soon as a document passes the read station, the reader examines its logic and machine controls to determine into which stacker the document will be directed. Documents always enter the normal stacker unless con-



Figure 7. Stacker

trolled to enter the select stacker. If a document is to be selected, a selector guide in the selector station deflects the document into the select stacker.

The processing unit can also control the direction of a document into the select stacker if a 1231 is being used. After the document has been read, the processing unit has 50 ms in which to analyze the data and give the select instruction.

Reading

"Reading" is a term applied to the recognition of data, and its conversion into machine-usable language. The IBM Optical Mark Page Reader recognizes data by means of changes in current at the read head.

Read Unit

The read unit of a fully-equipped Optical Mark Page Reader contains 22 photovoltaic cells. Twenty of these cells are used for reading data from the document, one is used for reading the timing marks, and one is used for recognition of a master mark (special feature).

Each photocell has an associated light source and light-limiting aperture. As documents pass under the read unit, light is directed onto the paper from these individual lamps, and reflects onto the exposed surface of their associated photocells. The intensity of the light striking the photocell is less when reflected from a marked position than when reflected from an unmarked position.

Photocells respond to light by producing current in measurable values; the more light striking a cell, the higher the current value. The Optical Mark Page Reader recognizes a current value substantially lower than normal as an indication that a mark is directly under the photocell. In order to assure that the Optical Mark Page Reader is reading valid marks only, outputs from the photocell are sampled only when mark positions on the document are properly positioned under the read unit (Figure 8).

The timing marks are read by the timing-mark photocell. When the first timing mark is read, the read cells for the first word are activated. As the data sheet moves on, the second timing mark is recognized and the second word is read. The timing marks synchronize the read cells with the word to be read.

As the data sheet moves through the read station, the timing marks cause the read cells to "flip-flop" from odd word to even word to odd word, etc. Because of the vital functions performed by the timing marks, extraneous marks must not be marked or printed in the timing-mark area.

Under control of the timing marks, words are read from left to right, from top to bottom, row by row. Two timing marks are associated with each row (one for each word). The first timing mark (upper) activates



Figure 8. Reading Schematic

the left word; the second timing mark activates the right word.

Although the timing marks determine which read cells are active, final storage of data from each word is controlled by the program control sheet. See *Program* Control Sheet.

A timing-mark-counting feature enables the 1231/1232 to detect missing or extra timing marks. Counting of the timing marks assures that the entire data sheet was scanned correctly. Stray marks in the timing mark area, or a folded corner on a sheet, can be detected.

When a timing-mark check is to be made, the 11position (0 through 9, and OFF) rotary switch, on the operators' control panel, must be preset to the unitsposition count of the timing marks on the data sheet. (When a timing mark check is not desired, the switch should be set to OFF.) If there were 106 timing marks on each data sheet, the rotary switch would be set to "6". Then, a units-position count of other than 6 would cause the machine to stop and the process-check light to turn on.

Mark Recognition and Discrimination

During the reading of data sheets, the Optical Mark Page Readers categorize marks according to their degree of light reflectance (Figure 9). A mark falls into one of the following categories:

- 1. Good
- 2. Poor
- 3. Uncertain

A good mark is recognized as a positive indication of a mark; a poor mark (or good erasure) is not recog-



A: Good Mark

B: Light Mark or Poor Erasure

C: Poor Mark or Good Erasure (Marks in this area are not read)

Figure 9. Mark Reflectance Relationship

nized as a mark, and an uncertain mark (light mark or poor erasure) is one whose light reflectance level comes somewhere in between a good mark and a poor mark, but cannot be positively identified as either. The reading or rejection of uncertainties can be customercontrolled.

Three read-mode switches, each associated with a set of field-checking switches, allow operator-control of mark discrimination on a field-by-field basis. Documents containing uncertainties can be selected for a visual check if desired.

Each of the three read-mode switches has four settings: SING RESP (single response); MULT RESP (multiple response); SING RESP SEL UNC (single response select uncertainties), and MULT RESP SEL UNC (multiple response select uncertainties).

The setting of each read-mode switch affects mark discrimination (Figure 9) as follows:

- 1. SING RESP:
 - a. Marks in area A are accepted.
 - b. Marks in area B that are not accompanied by a mark in Area A of the same word or segment are accepted.*
 - c. Marks in area B that are accompanied by a mark or marks in area A of the same word or segment are not accepted.*

- 2. SING RESP SEL UNC:
 - a. Marks in area A are accepted.
 - b. Marks in area B that are not accompanied by a mark in area A of the same word or segment cause the data sheet to be selected.*
 - c. Marks in area B that are accompanied by a mark in area A of the same word or segment are not accepted as marks.*
- 3. MULT RESP:
 - a. Marks in area A are accepted.
 - b. Marks in area B are accepted.
- 4. MULT RESP SEL UNC:
 - a. Marks in area A are accepted.
 - b. Marks in area B cause the document to be selected.

Whenever a data sheet is selected by the 1231, storage is cleared and data from that data sheet is not transferred to the computer. However, in the 1232, the information is transferred to the 534 Card Punch and a card is punched. The word or segment in which the uncertainty is detected is transferred to the card punch as a blank character, and the 11-punch in column 81 is inhibited.

Data Flow

The entry of data, control bits, and master data into the IBM Optical Mark Page Readers depends upon whether the reader is a 1231 or a 1232. The differences result because of the storage units used, the internal transfer of the data, and the storage used as output to the processing system or to the IBM 534 Model 3 Card Punch.

IBM 1231 Data Flow

Before the 1231 can act as an input device to a data processing system, the controls for the internal functions must be loaded and switches must be set to establish the conditions required for the particular run.

Two storage devices (sonic delay lines) are used to store and control the data as it is read from the data sheets. One of these storage devices, the "master" line, is used to store all the controls from the program control sheet and, if the 1231 is equipped with the Master Mark special feature, master-mark data and controls associated with master-mark data are also stored.

The other storage line, the "data" line, is used to store information from the data sheet. As the data sheet is read, the two storage lines work concurrently and in synchronism. The master line, which contains the program instructions, determines which information from the data sheet is to be retained.

^{*}The number of mark positions included in any one mark discrimination test is determined by the setting (SEGMENT or WORD) of the check-length switch.

The following sequence is used for entering data into a fully equipped 1231, and for making this information available to the processing system (Figure 10):

- 1. Line mark and word mark bits are generated by internal circuitry to establish the starting point of the data on the delay lines. These bits go into the data delay line.
- 2. Program control bits are loaded into the 1231 from the program control sheet, and go into the master line.
- 3. Master-mark information (if Master Mark special feature is installed and being used) is entered into the first ten positions of the master line.
- 4. Detail data reads into positions 12 through 111 of the data line.
- 5. A READ instruction from the processing unit causes the data (master and detail) from the master line and the data line to read out in sequence into the A register. The master data from positions 1 through 10 of the master line reads out first, followed by positions 12 through 111 of the data line.

The master and data lines read into the A register one segment at a time. Data is transferred from the A register to the B register between segments. While data is transferring from the B register to the processing system, the A register is receiving data from the next segment in storage. As data is transferred from the delay lines to the A register, each character is checked for odd-parity.



Figure 10. IBM 1231 Data Flow

IBM 1231 Message Format

Each word transferred from the 1231 to the computer reads into two adjacent positions of computer storage. Words are transferred one segment at a time; each segment entering one computer storage position. Words with marks in positions 0, 1, 2, 3, or 4 transfer to the computer as A, B, 1, 2, or 4 bits. Combinations of these bits make up a valid character. Similarly, marks in positions 5, 6, 7, 8, or 9 transfer to the computer as A, B, 1, 2, or 4 bits. Any or all of the marking positions on the data sheet may contain marks, and the data will be transferred to the computer as a valid combination of bits.

Note: When a zero or a five is the only mark read within a segment, the mark is transferred to the computer as an A-bit only. If the mark is then written **onto** a tape instructed to write in even-parity, the A-bit is combined with a C-bit. This combination represents a substitute blank character when read out of the tape to the computer. The original mark on the data sheet has lost its identity. If the A-bit is first translated into some normal core storage character (i.e. an 8-2 for a numeric zero) before writing it **onto** tape, its identity is retained. Also, if the tape unit is instructed to write in odd-parity, each character transferred from the 1231 will retain its original core storage identity.

Data is read by the 1231 from left to right, top to bottom, a row at a time. Information from a data sheet is stored in the following sequence:

- 1. Segment one of the first word programmed to read.
- 2. Segment two of the first word.
- 3. Segment one of the second word programmed to read.
- 4. Segment two of the second word.

If only one segment of any word is programmed to read, only one position of computer storage is used.

IBM 1232 Data Flow

The 1232, when used with an IBM 534 Model 3 Card Punch, uses the facilities of both units for controlling information as it is entered, transferred, and made available to the 534.

Program control bits are entered into the 1232 storage from a program control sheet. Master data, to be retained until the next master data sheet is read, is entered into the first ten positions of storage. Detail data enters storage in positions 11 through 110.

In a fully equipped 1232, the following sequence is used in entering the program controls, master data, and detail data into the machine (Figure 11).

- 1. Line Mark and Word Mark bits are generated by internal circuitry.
- 2. Program controls are loaded into storage delay lines 1 and 2.
- 3. Master data is read into delay line 1 (first 10 positions).
- 4. Detail data is read into delay line 1 (positions 11 through 110).
- 5. Controlled by the 534 program card, master and detail data are read from line 1.

Data and control bits are checked for even parity as they transfer from the delay line to the punch register.



Figure 11. IBM 1232 Data Flow, Including Segmented Word Feature

IBM 1232 Message Format

Each word transferred from the 1232 to the 534 transfers digit-value-for-digit-value. A 9-mark in a word on the data sheet would transfer and punch as a 9-punch in the card; a 3-mark and a 7-mark in one word would transfer and punch as a 3-punch and a 7-punch in one card column (when the 1232 is operating in word mode). When multiple punches in the card are not a standard card code, a special feature may be required on the using system. For example, the Column Binary special feature is required for 1401 processing; the Card Image special feature is required for 1440 processing.

The data sheet is read from left to right, top to bottom. one row at a time. All like data (identification or detail data) will transfer to the 534 Card Punch in the sequence read. If the first ten odd-words on the data sheet were identification data (available only on machines equipped with either the Multiple Spread-Card or Unit Record Card feature) and the first ten even words were detail data, the data would be stored in alternate positions as read. In this case, the first word in storage would be identification data, the second word would be detail data, etc. When the data is called for by the 534 (a 9 punch calls for detail data, a 2 punch calls for identification data), like data would read out of 1232 storage as it was read. If identification data were called for in the first ten positions of the 534 program card, only the odd words (1 through 19) would read out and punch. Even words 2 through 20 would read out and punch when detail data is requested by the 534 program card. If a word on the data sheet is not marked but the program control sheet calls for reading of the unmarked word, the associated card column is spaced over.

IBM 1232/534 Synchronization Check

Words that are read by the 1232 must be punched in the correct card columns by the 534. This synchronization is accomplished through the programming of both machines. Two programming procedures are involved; the marking of the program control sheet used in the 1232, and the punching of the program card associated with the 534.

When the 1232 program control sheet is marked, a mark in position 4 and a mark in position 8 designates the word as a sync-check word.

When the 534 program card is punched, a 6-punch and a 9-punch in a card column designates a sync-check card column. Failure to match the sync-check word with the sync-check card column causes the machine to stop and the punch-check light to turn on.

To maintain maximum sync-checking on each card, the sync-check card column should be the last column of detail data programmed to punch. However, because a sheet-feed instruction can be programmed (534 program card) as many as eight columns ahead of the last column of data to be punched, a sync check could occur either before or after a feed instruction.

A sync check *before* a feed instruction requires the reprocessing of only the last document read. A sync check *after* a feed instruction requires reprocessing of two documents: the last one stacked, and that in the 1232 transport.

When synchronization check is used with either the Multiple Spread-Card or the Unit Record Card features, sync-check words in the 1232 must be programmed to correspond to the last column punched in each card. Then, the sync-check words and the sync-check card columns will match when multiple cards are punched for a data sheet.

When punching is in segment mode (Segmented Word feature) the two card columns that correspond to the two segments of the sync-check word must be programmed as sync-check columns. However; when only one segment of the word is to be punched, only one sync-check card column is needed.

Field Checking

The field-checking feature, standard on both the 1231 and 1232, allows each word programmed to read to be checked for mark conditions which may indicate invalid data. Three switch-controllable mark conditions, each of which will cause the document to be selected, can be checked. These conditions are: Multi-marks, No marks, and Other-Than-One. The switch also has an "off" position.

Data sheets are usually designed with "fields" of similar data in vertically consecutive words on the left or right sides of the data sheet. The policy number field, shown in Figure 12, is an example of a *data* sheet field.

A *field-checking field* differs from a data sheet field primarily in functional grouping. A data sheet field groups similar information for ease of marking and reference. A field-checking field may contain part of, or several data sheet fields. The primary requirement of field checking is that all mark data within a field's area of coverage be checked for the same conditions (multimark, no mark, etc).

The field-checking fields on the data sheet are defined by special codes (start-of-checking codes) which are entered into 1231/1232 storage from the program control sheet. A field-checking field can be from one to one hundred words in length.

Three start-of-checking control codes allow any specific area of the data sheet to be checked according to one of three groups of field-checking switches. The three groups of field-checking switches are labelled; Field I, Field II, and Field III.

The checking of a field-checking field by a particular group of switches begins on the word in which the field-

checking control code is recognized. On the program control sheet, a mark in position six designates the start of data checking according to conditions set up in Field I switches; a mark in position SEVEN designates the start of data checking according to conditions set up in Field II switches; marks in positions SIX AND SEVEN designate the start of data checking according to Field III switches.

A new data sheet always starts checking according to Field I switches unless programmed otherwise. Figure 13 shows the program controls needed to read and field check the illustrated insurance form. The setting of the switches is shown in Figure 12.

Three switches are assigned to each field: (1) a read mode switch, which determines how uncertainty marks are handled; (2) a check length switch, which determines whether information is to be checked on a word or segment basis; and (3) a select condition switch, which determines the conditions for which a data sheet will be selected.

Because the data sheet is read from left to right, top to bottom, row by row, field checking becomes an important factor when a new data sheet is to be designed. If, for instance, the data sheet is to be used for a "yes" and "no" survey, the yes and no mark positions should be within one segment or word in order to allow checking for both, either, or neither answer.

The field checking feature can be summarized as follows:

- Each of the three field-checking switches can be set to one of the select conditions, or to the OFF position.
- Unless programmed for another field, checking always returns to Field I at the start of a new data sheet.
- Field checking by a given set of field-checking switches begins in the word programmed and continues (in all words programmed to read) until a new field checking command has been recognized.
- A field can begin or end on either the left or the right word.
- A field can be from one to one hundred words in length.
- Three conditions can be checked: OTHER-THAN-ONE (multi-mark and/or blank detection), NO-MARK (blank detection only), and MULTI-MARK (multimark detection only).

When a data sheet is selected because of a fieldchecking condition, or because of an uncertainty reading, the 1231 does not transmit any data from that data sheet to the computer. The 1232, under the same conditions, allows the card to be punched, omitting the punch from the position in which the uncertainty was read. The 11-punch in column 81 is also omitted from that card.

		INDU	USTRIAL A	PPLICAT	ION					Ξ	
DATE OF POLICY	PÓLICY	NUMBER	I				P			Ξ] [
YOUT FULL NAME ((LAST)	FIEL			·····	L			Ξ	
RESIDENCE (Print)	NO. STREET		R.F.O. Floor Apt. Front				Y			Ξ	
Place of Birth	(STATE) 4. DATE OF MONTH DA	BIRTH 5. AGE L	REAR AST Birthday			.	N		,	• Ξ	
Married	Widowed	Single					B E R			····· <u> </u>	
What is your height and weight?	ti. in: surance with the ANY LIFE	ا	ibs		IARY (Print F				AG		
INSURANCE COMPA	NY.? YES	NO		_						Ξ	
IF YES, WHICH?	\$250 \$ 500	\$ 750	FIEL	_•₀ .D II	HUSBAND	MOTHER	FATI	ER S	ON	Ξ	1 L
POLICY APPLIED (a) P WL 75 E		S 50		COUSIN	CHILD		FIELDI	· ·	N BACK	=	
WL65 3	OE	\$ 250 \$1000	\$500	disease, minor bo	u in the past ailment, or d we fracture a cceeded a per	lisability, o nd such co	nsultation re	unmon cold,	a serious virus or atment	Ξ	FI R
(a) OCCUPATION, Jo		formed.				YES		NO			C
lf job title appear on back. (a) Job	below check mark it otherwise	complete Questions (c) Business o	FIEL	.D I	i any physic	al defect	or impairm	int of healtl	?	Ξ	
PREMIUM PAYABLE				7. Within t	explain on bo he last five	years hav	e yau been	NO declined, po	stponed,		FI FI
	MONTHLY QUARTERLY	SEM - ANNUAL	ANORUAL.	eny oth	ed a policy er company? explain on b		n applied (YE		07 NO	Ξ	R
TANDARO RATING	RATING 3 OTHER SI	PECIFY ON BACK	FIEL	.0	office is loc	in same	state in wh		<u>t</u> s	10 E	S
	3 4 TENS 8	<u>a</u>					OCCUPATION			Ē	FI
0 1 2 		•		9.	REPOR	T OF FIE	LD REPRES	ENTATIVE		<u> </u>	Re
0 <u>1</u> 2	FIELD III	9	HES	question	w checked at a are answe certify that	red ?		:: YES ::	NO	<u> </u>	CI Se
0 1 2	3	PO	UNDS	OF FIEL	D REPRESENT	TATIVE is	a true and oplication?	orrect copy		Ξ	
<u>0 1 8</u>		<u></u>		SIGNAT URE	OF ESENTATIVE						
D. I hereby request t UNTIL AND UNLES	hat any DIVIDENDS payable und S ANY OTHER OPTION SHALL	der the policy appli BE SELECTED IN	I Ar	•	the purchase TERMS OF	THE POLICY	P ADDITION	TO THE S	M INSURED	=	
The foregoing	statements and answers are - surance if one is issued; (2) n pany (a) to make, modify or	no agent or any o r discharge any c	ithe contre. the Company w	or rill incur no) these stat President, or (b) to bind th liability by	Secretary e Company reason of	of the Com by making this applic	any, has pow any promise stion except	er on es as may be		
behalf of the Com respecting any b provided in a Com	enefits under any policy issue litional Receipt given on and paid to the Company.	bearing the same	date as this	eppacerion						=	



SETUP

de Switch---Set to Sing Resp ength Switch---Set to Word Condition Switch---Set to Other-Than-One

SETUP

ode Switch---Set to Sing Resp ength Switch---Set to Word Condition Switch---Set to Multi-Mark

SETUP

de Switch---Set to Sing Resp ength Switch---Set to Segment Condition Switch---Set to Multi-Mark

					APPLICA					
DATE OF POLICY		POLICY N	UMBER							
I Your FULL NAM	L. (Dent)							0 L		
					1 -		3 4	1 5	6 7	•
(FULL FIRST NA 2. RESIDENCE (Prin	ME) (MIDD 1) NO. S	TREET	(LA	ST NAME)				C		
CITY OF TOWN		ź	ONE STA	FLOOR APT FRONT						
3. Place of Birth	(STATE)	4 DATE OF B		REAR				N ***** U *****		
	(0.4.2)	MONTH DAY	1	Year	0		3 4	м	6 7	• •
6. Morried	Widowed		Single		-1			8 E		: :::
7					-			R		
What is your height and weigh	1?	ins.		lbs	13. <u>BENEF</u>	ICIARY (Print F	ULL NAME)			AGE
8. Do you now have INSURANCE CON	PANY?	ANY LIFE								
		YES	NO							
IF YES, WHICH?					14 RELAT	IONSHIP OF BE	ENEFIC ARY			
9 POLICY APPLIE	\$ 250	\$ 500	\$ 750 AMOUNT PUR	\$ 1000	WIFE	HUSBAND	MOTHER	FATHER	SON	_
	D FOR	FAGE	AMOUNT PUP	NUTASEU	DAUGHTER	CHILD	BROTHER	SISTER		
	·· E60 ······ E85	\$ 25	\$ 50	\$ 75	COUSIN	NIECE	NEPHEW		SPECIFY ON I	
:.::W165	- 30E EBO	\$ 100	\$ 250	\$500	15 Have	you in the past s, ailment, or a	t five years co disability, other	nsulted a d than a con	loctor for a m mmon cold, vii	serious rus or
III IOPL II	: 20E ::::: E65	\$750	\$1000		minor I	bone fracture o	riod of one w	Itation resul	ted in treatm	ment
	20PL 30PL		-				YES		NO	
II PREMIUM PAYABL	.E				17. Within		years have	rou been de	aclined posto	poned.
	2. TT		•		or off any o	ered a policy ther company?	other than a		by this or	
	MONTHLY	QUARTERLY	SEMI-ANNUAL	L ANNUAL	any o If yes	ther company? , explain on b	ack.	YES	by this or NO	
12. CLASSIFICATION STANDARD RATIN			SEMI-ANNUAL		any or If yes 18. Does a	ther company? , explain on b	ack. e in same sta	YES	by this or NO	-
STÂNDURD RATIN	G RATING 3	OTHER SPE	CIFY ON BAC	SK	any ol If yes 18. Does a distric	ther company? , explain on b pplicant resid t office is loc	ack. e in same sto cated?	YES ato in which IPATION	by this or NO	-
STANDARD RATIN	G : RATING 3	OTHER SPE	CIFY ON BAC	8 9.	IB. Does a district	ther company? , explain on b pplicant resident office is loc	ack. e in same sto coted ? 	YES 118 in which 19ATION	by this or NO VES	
STANDARD RATIN A	G RATING 3	OTHER SPE	CIFY ON BAC		any of If yes 18. Does a distric	ther company? i, explain on b pplicant resid t office is loc 	vack. e in same sto coted ? C 3 4	VES ate in which IPATION ODE	by this or WO VES	
STANDARD RATIN A 1 2 G 1 2 G 1 2 H 1 2	I RATING 3	OTHER SPE NS 5 6 TS 6 6 5 6	CIFY ON BAC		IS. Does a district	ther company? , explain on b pplicant resid t office is loc 	ack. a in same sto cated? 3 4 Control Control Cont	VES Ite in which IPATION ODE S REPRESEN n to make t	by this or NO YES TATIVE sure all items	NC
STANDARD RATIN A 1 2 G 1 2 G 1 2 H 1 2	RATING 3 	OTHER SPE NS 0 6 TS 6 6 5 6	CIFY ON BAC	8 9.	IS Does a district of the second seco	ther company? , explain on b pplicant resid t office is loc 	ack. a in same sto cated ? 3 4 Control of Control o	YES ate in which iPATION ODE S REPRESEN n to make n survey	by this or NO VES TATIVE sure all litems res	a and
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	RATING 3 	OTHER SPE	CIFY ON BAC		IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	ther company? , explain on b pplicant resid t office is loc 	ack. e in same sto coted ?	VES ate in which IPATION ODE The PRESEN REPRESEN To make to The The PRESEN The Containe The Containe	by this or NO VES TATIVE sure all items ts sure all items d on this R	a and NO
STÄNGARD RATIN A	RATING 3	OTHER SPE NS 0 6 TS 6 6 0 6 1/4 4/ S 5 6 5 6 1/4 4/	CIPY ON BAC	Le ches	IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	ther company? , explain on b pplicant resid t office is loc 	ack. a in same sto cated ?	VES ate in which IPATION ODE The PRESEN REPRESEN To make to The The PRESEN The Containe The Containe	by this or NO VES TATIVE sure all litems rest copy of	a and NOS
STANGARD RATIN A 1 2 G 1 2 H 1 2 H 1 2 H 1 2 H 1 2 H 2 H 2 H 2 H 2 H 0 W 0 2	RATING 3 	OTHER SPE NS 0 6 5 6 6 6 1(4 1/4 5 5 5 6 5 6	CIPY ON BAC	e e t	any of If yes If yes of of If yes of of of of of of of of of of	ther company? , explain on b pplicant resid t office is loc i 2 REPOP you checked at ons are answ certify that LD REPRESENT tion which app	ack. a in same sto cated ?	YES VES In which IPATION ODE AEPRESEN In to make s IN Don containe rue and cor rue and cor rotaine?	by this or NO VES TATIVE sure all litems rest copy of	a and NOS
STANGARD RATIN A	RATING 3 3 4 TEI 3 4 UNI 3 4 UNI 3 4 UNI 3 4 UNI 3 4 UNI 3 4 UNI 3 4 UNI	OTHER SPE NS 5 6 TS 6 6 0 6 0 6 0 6 0 6 0 6 0 6 0 6	CIFY ON BAC	EET CHES C	any of 16 Deve a distric 0 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19	ther company? , stylicin on b pplicant residuent t office is loc REPOS REPOS REVENT REPRESENT LD REVRESENT LD REVREVREV	ack. cated a in some sto cated a cated a cat	PATION PATION APEPRESEN APEPRESEN n to make make and corr containe Patient APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APERATIONA APERATIONA APERAT	by this or NO YES TATIVE Sure all items tas d on this R rect copy of ES	
STANGARD RATIN A	RATING 3 3 4 TEI 3 4 UNI 3 4 UNI 3 4 UNI 3 4 UNI 3 4 UNI 3 4 UNI 3 4 UNI	OTHER SPE NS 5 6 TS 6 6 0 6 0 6 0 6 0 6 0 6 0 6 0 6	CIFY ON BAC	EET CHES C	any of 16 Deve a distric 0 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19	ther company? , stylicin on b pplicant residuent t office is loc REPOS REPOS REVENT REPRESENT LD REVRESENT LD REVREVREV	ack. cated a in some sto cated a cated a cat	PATION PATION APEPRESEN APEPRESEN n to make make and corr containe Patient APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APERATIONA APERATIONA APERAT	by this or NO YES TATIVE Sure all items tas d on this R rect copy of ES	
STANGARD RATIN A 1 2 G 1 2 H 2 H 2 H 2 H I W 0 1 I I UNTIL AND UNL The foreapping	3 4 TEI 3 4 TEI 3 4 UNI 5 4 3 4 11 100 3 4 10 3 5 4 11 100 3 4 10 100 3 4 10 100 3 4 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	07768 SPE NS 9 6 5 6 9 6 1(4 1/2 VS - S 0, 6 5 6 5 6 5 6 6 1(4 1/2 1/2 1/2 5 5 6 6 1/4 1/2 1/2 5 6 6 1/4 1/2 1/2 1/2 1/2 1/2 1/2 1/2 1/2	1::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::	D P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P	any of If yes 18. Dese a distric 19. Have y question 19. Have y 19. Have	ther company? , stylicin on b pplicant residu t office is loc REPOR	ack. in same storested? costed? costed? declaration of the storested of the storested of the store	YES te in which PATION TO TO THE STATE A EPPRESEN TO CONTAIN TO CONTAIN TO CONTAIN TO CONTAIN TO CONTAIN TO THE STATE TO THE STATE	by this or NO VES TATIVE TATIV	and NO- tepont it No- tepont it No-
STANGARD RATIN A 1 2 G 1 2 H 2 H 2 H 2 H I W 0 1 I I UNTIL AND UNL The foreapping	3 4 TEI 3 4 TEI 3 4 UNI 5 4 3 4 11 100 3 4 10 3 5 4 11 100 3 4 10 3 5 4 11 100 12 100 3 4 10 100 5 4 10 100 10 100 10 100 10 100 10 100 10 100	07768 SPE NS 9 6 5 6 9 6 1(4 1/2 VS - S 0, 6 5 6 5 6 5 6 6 1(4 1/2 1/2 1/2 5 5 6 6 1/4 1/2 1/2 5 6 6 1/4 1/2 1/2 1/2 1/2 1/2 1/2 1/2 1/2	1::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::	D P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P	any of If yes 18. Dese a distric 19. Have y question 19. Have y 19. Have	ther company? , stylicin on b pplicant residu t office is loc REPOR	ack. in same storested? costed? costed? declaration of the storested of the storested of the store	YES te in which PATION TO TO THE STATE A EPPRESEN TO CONTAIN TO CONTAIN TO CONTAIN TO CONTAIN TO CONTAIN TO THE STATE TO THE STATE	by this or NO VES TATIVE TATIV	and NO- tepont it No- tepont it No-
STANGARD RATIN A A B C B C B C B B W 0 O 1 2 H O 1 2 H O 1 2 H O 1 2 H J I I J I <td>3 4 TEI 3 4 TEI 3 4 UNI 5 4 UNI 3 4 IOC 5 4 ION 1 Instructure INN 1 Instructure IO 1 Io Io</td> <td>07768 SPE NS 9 6 TS 0 6 9 0 1(4 <u>1</u><u>1</u> 1/4 <u>1</u><u>1</u> S 0, 6 TS 0, 6 1(4 <u>1</u><u>1</u><u>1</u> 1(5 <u>1</u><u>1</u>) 1(5 <u>1</u>) 1(5 <u>1</u>) 1</td> <td>Image: Image in the policy of the second s</td> <td>Correction of the second seco</td> <td>any of If yes 18. Dese a distric 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19.</td> <td>ther company? , stylicin on b pplicant residu t office is loc REPOR</td> <td>ack. in isome stocsted? cost</td> <td>YES te in which PATION PATION APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APP</td> <td>by this or NO VES TATIVE TATIVE TATIVE TATIC TAT</td> <td>and NOCONT IN SURED IN SURED Osia of on</td>	3 4 TEI 3 4 TEI 3 4 UNI 5 4 UNI 3 4 IOC 5 4 ION 1 Instructure INN 1 Instructure IO 1 Io Io	07768 SPE NS 9 6 TS 0 6 9 0 1(4 <u>1</u> <u>1</u> 1/4 <u>1</u> <u>1</u> S 0, 6 TS 0, 6 1(4 <u>1</u> <u>1</u> <u>1</u> 1(5 <u>1</u> <u>1</u>) 1(5 <u>1</u>) 1	Image: Image in the policy of the second s	Correction of the second seco	any of If yes 18. Dese a distric 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19.	ther company? , stylicin on b pplicant residu t office is loc REPOR	ack. in isome stocsted? cost	YES te in which PATION PATION APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APP	by this or NO VES TATIVE TATIVE TATIVE TATIC TAT	and NOCONT IN SURED IN SURED Osia of on
STANGARD RATIN A 1 2 G 2 1 2 H 2 1 2 H 2 1 2 H 2 1 2 H 2 1 2	3 4 TEI 3 4 TEI 3 4 UNI 5 4 3 4 11 100 3 4 10 3 5 4 11 100 3 4 10 3 5 4 11 100 12 100 3 4 10 100 5 4 10 100 10 100 10 100 10 100 10 100 10 100	OTHER SPE NS 9 0 TS 5 6 1 6 0 2 6 0 3 6 0 1/4 1/4 1/4 ys 5 5 6 5 70N SHALL 6 newers are tristeds (2) no. , modify or journey issued ysee on and busen on the see on the s	Image: Image in the policy of the second s	Correction of the second seco	any of If yes 18. Dese a distric 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19.	ther company? , stylicin on b pplicant residu t office is loc REPOR	ack. in isome stocsted? cost	YES te in which PATION PATION APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APEPRESEN APP	by this or NO VES TATIVE TATIVE TATIVE TATIC TAT	and NOCONT IN SURED IN SURED Osia of on
STANGARD RATIN A 1 2 G 2 1 2 H 2 1 2 H 2 1 2 H 2 1 2 H 1 2 H <	3 4 TEI 3 4 TEI 3 4 UNI 3 4 II 3 4 IOC 5 4 IOC 6 10 IOC 6 10 IOC 10 IOC IOC 10 IOC IOC <	OTHER SPE NS 9 0 TS 9 6 5 0 14 1/2 VS 9 5 0 6 6 14 1/2 VS 9 5 0 6 6 14 1/2 VS 9 6 7 7 8 9 6 6 14 1/2 15 9 16 6 16 1/2 16 6 16 6 16 1/2 16 6 16 6 16 6 16 7 16 6 16 6 16 6 16 6 16 7 16 6 16 6 16 6 16 7 16 6 16 6 16 7 16 6 16 7 16 6 16 7 16	r the policy r the policy again or an interface of the second r the policy estimation of an interface of the second r the policy estimation or an interface of the second r the second r th	Correction of the second seco	any of If yes 18. Dese a distric 19. Move y question 19. Move y 19. Mov	ther company? , explain on b ppicant reads t office is loc REPOP REPOP REVENTATIVE E OF RESENTATIVE a the purchase TERMS OF (I) these stat President, or (b) to bind the	ack. ack. in items stocsted? actions of the stocsted? action of the stocsted? action of the stocsted of the stocsted action of the stocsted of the stockted of the stocsted of the stocsted of the stocsted of the stocsted of the stockted of the stock	YES te in which PATION PATION TO TO TO TO TO TO TO TO TO TO	by this or NO VES TATIVE transmission tative all leans transmission to THE SUM to THE SUM to THE SUM to make power on except or on except or on the full	and NOCONT IN SURED IN SURED Osia of on
STANGARD RATIN A 1 2 G 2 1 2 H 2 1 2 H 2 1 2 H 2 1 2 H 1 2 H <	A RATING 3 A RATI	OTHER SPE NS 9 0 TS 9 6 5 0 14 1/2 VS 9 5 0 6 6 14 1/2 VS 9 5 0 6 6 14 1/2 VS 9 6 7 7 8 9 6 6 14 1/2 15 9 16 6 16 1/2 16 6 16 6 16 1/2 16 6 16 6 16 6 16 7 16 6 16 6 16 6 16 6 16 7 16 6 16 6 16 6 16 7 16 6 16 6 16 7 16 6 16 7 16 6 16 7 16	r the policy r the policy r the policy BE SELECTE us and comp agent or an alcohorg a hereunder; earing the Dated of	Check Control	any o if yes 18. Dese a distric 	ther company? , explain on b pplicant reals t offics is loc real REPOF real of the second REPOF real of the second real of the second re	ack. ack. in items stocsted? actions of the stocsted? action of the stocsted? action of the stocsted of the stocsted action of the stocsted of the stockted of the stocsted of the stocsted of the stocsted of the stocsted of the stockted of the stock	YES te in which PATION PATION TO TO TO TO TO TO TO TO TO TO	by this or NO VES TATIVE transmission tative all leans transmission to THE SUM to THE SUM to THE SUM to make power on except or on except or on the full	and NOCONT IN SURED IN SURED Osia of on

PROGRAM CONTROLS ILLUSTRATED

Mark in position 8--Read word.

Marks in positions 6 and 8––Read word and check data according to Field I switch setup.

Marks in positions 7 and 8--Read word and check data according to Field II switches.

Marks in positions 6, 7, and 8--Read word and check data according to Field III switch setup.

Marks in positions 4 and 8––Read word . The 4 disignates a sync–check word for 1232 use with the IBM 534 Card Punch .

PROGRAM CONTROLS NOT ILLUSTRATED

Marks in positions 0 and 8––Read segment one of the word so marked.

Marks in positions 5 and 8--Read segment two of the word so marked.

Marks in positions 3 and 8--Read and store this word as identification data. This program control is used with either the Multiple Spread-Card or Unit Record Card features on the 1232 only.

Marks in positions 1 and 8--Reads the word and indicates the end of a group to advance the group count (Unit Record Card feature--1232 Only)

Alphabetic Coding

An alphabetic coding capability is necessary and desirable in many applications. Three methods of alphabetic coding are illustrated in Figure 14.

Scheme 1: To code an alphabetic character, a mark must appear in the appropriate marking position of both the odd (left hand) and even (right hand) words of the same horizontal row. For example; to indicate the letter K, one mark must be made in the marking position immediately below the caption "J thru R" in the odd word, and one mark must be made in the marking position immediately below the caption "BKS" in the even word of the same horizontal row.

The odd-word, in this scheme, represents the zone portion of the character. In 1232/534 application, two card columns will be used for each alphabetic character marked. Marks in positions 0 through 9 of each word will punch as 0 through 9 punches, the same as normal numeric punching.

Scheme 2: Each letter of the alphabet can be preprinted on the data sheet in reflective ink. The letters and/or numbers may be printed above, on, or below the mark positions. In this approach, the identity of each character is determined by its position in the matrix, which is programmable. The entering of the marks is simple; however, considerable space is required on the data sheet to represent all the alphabetic and numeric characters. Four card columns are needed to represent all the alphabetic and numeric characters. An "A" would punch as a "1" in the first of the four columns; a "Y" would punch as an "8" in the third column.

Scheme 3: Each letter of the alphabet, or digits 0 through 9, can be represented by using only one word. An alphabetic character must be represented by a mark in each segment of the word selected for this purpose ("Z" is an exception). To indicate a "K", marks in the 2 position of the left-hand segment and in the 5 position of the right-hand segment are required. Each character is represented by a unique combination of punches.

For instance; suppose an "A" is marked in positions 0 and 5 of a word. If punching is on a word basis, the "A" would be represented by punches in positions 0 and 5 in a card column; the letter "X" would punch as a 4 and 8 in the corresponding card column.

Controls

The operator's console (Figure 15) on the Optical Mark Page Reader contains the keys, lights and switches necessary for setup and operation.

A thru I		J thru R				S thru Z	2010	لم 1	BKS 2	CLT 3	DMU 4	ENV 5	FOW 6	GPX 7	HQY 8	IRZ
	 SCHEME 1 			For Alph For Num	abetic - / eric - Ma	Make two ma ke one mark =====	ints per horizont in the appropria	al row. ite right h	===== and (ever =====) word . 						-
		=====					=====							=====		
			Mark	the Appr	opriate Po	osition			==0==	:: :: ::	:: D ::	==#==	-= F ::	- G -	::#::	
	SCHEME II							-st-	::::	:: t ::	:**:	:::Nt	:: 0 ::	:: :: ::	: Q .:	R
	Senane n								== \$ ==	:: f ::		-:¥		X	::: Y ::	:: z :: _
							::0 ::	:: t ::	2	::9::	::4::	::5::	:: 6 ::	:: 7 ::	::8::	9
	SCHEME III			tic – Make – Make o		ks per word. per word.	ABC DE 0	FGH IJ 1	KLM NO 2	PQR STZ 3	UVW XYZ 4	AFK PU 5	BGL QV 6	CHM RW 7	DIN SX 8	EJO TY 9
												=====				

Figure 14. Alphabetic Coding Schemes

Keys and Switches

- Start Key: A depression of the start key feeds the first data sheet and establishes continuous running conditions with two exceptions: (1) If the feed mode switch on the 1231 is set to CONTINUOUS, the feed circuits are interlocked with the program of the processing system and will not feed the first sheet until the processing system is placed in an operating status, and (2) if the Reader is in a load program cycle, the program control sheet feeds and the control bits are stored.
- Stop Key: A depression of the stop key halts document feeding and lowers the hopper plate to facilitate the loading of more data sheets.
- Reset Key: A depression of the reset key raises the hopper to the feed position and resets the electronic circuitry. Check or error conditions should be corrected before pressing the reset key.
- Program Load Key: A depression of the program load key clears the delay line storage of previously-stored data, and conditions the machine for program load-

ing. This key is lighted during the program load cycle.

- Master Mark Switch: The master mark switch is active only on machines equipped with the Master Mark special feature. This switch controls the capability of the Optical Mark Page Reader to recognize a master mark on the right edge of the data sheet. When this switch is on, the recognition of a master mark causes the data in the first ten positions of storage to be cleared and new master-mark data to be accepted.
- Feed Mode Switch: The feed mode switch (1231 machines only) has two settings: CONTINUOUS and ON-DEMAND. When the switch is set to CONTINUOUS, documents feed continuously. This setting requires the processing unit program to give a read instruction within 150ms after buffer full in the 1231. Buffer full can occur as frequently as once every 1585 ms. When the switch is set to ON-DEMAND, feeding is controlled from the system program. The next document will not feed until the contents of the delay line (from the previous document) is transferred to the computer.

RE-FEED SEL DOC

FEED

STOP



Figure 15. Operator Console (1231 upper view; 1232 lower view)

SELECT CONDITION

- Punch Mode Switch (Special Feature): The punch mode switch (1232 only) has two settings: "Segment" and "Word". When the switch is set to SEGMENT, punching of the card in the 534 is on a segment per card column basis. When the switch is set to WORD, punching is on a word per card column basis. Master mark and identification data always punch on a word basis, regardless of the switch setting.
- Check Length Switch: Three check-length switches are located on the operator's panel; one for each of three sets of switches associated with fields. These switches have two settings: "Segment" and "Word". The setting defines the length of the item as it will be checked for each field. The SEGMENT setting will check the five positions of a segment; the WORD setting will check all ten positions of a word.
- Select Condition Switches: Each of the three select switches has four settings: "Off", "No Mark", "Multi-Mark", and "Other-Than-One". Each switch is associated with a check length switch and one of the three fields. The settings represent the conditions in a given field under which a document will be directed to the select stacker.
- Unit Record Card Switch: When this switch is on, the 1232 operates in unit-record card mode; one card is punched for each field. When the switch is off, one card is punched for each data sheet.
- Read Mode Switches: These three switches, each associated with a set of field-checking switches, determine the conditions of mark discrimination. Each read mode switch has four settings: Single Response, Multiple Response, Single Response-Select Uncertainties, and Multiple Response-Select Uncertainties. See Mark Recognition and Discrimination in this publication for a detailed description of each switch setting.
- Control Timing Marks Switch: This switch enables the 1231 to eliminate the 75ms delay associated with the timing-mark-checking feature. The switch has two settings, "Yes" and "No". YES is used when the documents to be processed have the six, extra, controltiming marks needed for IBM 1230 operation. No is used when no control timing marks are on the documents; the 75ms delay is eliminated.
- Timing Mark Check Switch: This switch is an 11-position rotary switch with settings numbered "0 through 9" and "Off". The switch is preset by the operator to match the units-position count of timing marks on the data sheets to be processed. For example; if there were 106 timing marks on a document to be processed, the switch would be set at "6".

Lights

- Start Key Light: The start key, when lit, indicates that the machine is in a ready state. The light goes off when the start key is pressed, and the light remains off until the machine is again conditioned to the ready state.
- Feed Check Light: This light indicates a sheet jam, a misfeed, a double-sheet feed, a full stacker, or an empty hopper. These conditions cause the machine to stop, and the condition must be corrected before the light can be turned off by pressing the reset key.
- Process Check Light: This light indicates the following conditions:
 - 1. A parity error in storage logic.
 - 2. The count of data-sheet timing marks is not in agreement with the setting of the timing-mark switch.
 - 3. Failure of processing unit to take data from the B-Reg before the A-Reg loaded new data into it. See 1231 Data Flow.
 - 4. A logic or delay line failure when:
 - a. No control bits are loaded into the master line during the reading of a program control sheet.
 - b. No data bits are loaded during the reading of a data sheet. (Blanks normally load a C bit.)
- System Stopped Light (1231 only): This light is turned on whenever the processing system is stopped while connected to the 1231.
- Punch Check Light (1232 only): This light turns on when the IBM 534 Card Punch is not ready to receive information because of an empty hopper, no card in punch position, a full stacker, a card jam, a synccheck condition, or a card misfeed.
- Refeed Sel Doc Light: This light comes on whenever one or more of the following conditions occurs (the last document in the select stacker must be reprocessed):
 - 1. A multi-mark is detected during the reading of the master-mark document.
 - 2. An uncertainty is detected during the reading of the program control sheet.
 - 3. An uncertainty, without an accompanying dark mark, is detected during the reading of the mastermark sheet.
 - 4. A READ instruction during continuous mode operation is received too late (1231 only).
 - 5. A process check occurs and a new sheet has started to feed (1231 in continuous feed mode only).

Programming

Programming for the 1231 and 1232 depends upon two sources of control: controls stored within the 1231 or 1232, and controls received from the system or punch to which the 1231 or 1232 is connected. Controls stored within the reader are entered into storage from a program control sheet.

Program Control Sheet

A program control sheet is a data sheet with certain operational controls marked in the data areas. Each word from the data sheet consists of ten positions. Each word in storage consists of 16 positions; 10 for the positions on the data sheet, and six for storing operational and internal controls generated by circuitry.

Every word that is to be retained for transferral to the external connecting unit must have an operational control marked in that word on the program control sheet. When operational control information is entered into storage, the control bits go into some of the six control positions associated with each word.

During the program load cycle, the mark positions used as control positions are:

- 1. A mark in position eight. This designates that a word is to be stored. This word will be available later for readout to the external system or punch.
- 2. A mark in position zero and a mark in position eight. This will store data from segment "one" only. This ability is standard on the 1231 and available on the 1232 when the Segmented Word special feature is installed.
- 3. A mark in position five and a mark in position eight. This will store data from segment "two" only. This is a standard feature of the 1231 and available as a special feature (Segmented Word feature) on the 1232.
- 4. A mark in position three and a mark in position eight. This will store data designated as identification data, which can involve a page number, customer number, salesman number, or other data used to identify the sheet being processed. This function is available as a special feature (Multiple Spread-Card or Unit Record Card features) on the 1232. In the case of multiple cards for a single data sheet, this mark allows the identification data to be punched into every card associated with a specific sheet.

- 5. A mark in position six. This indicates the start of field checking according to the settings of Field I switches.
- 6. A mark in position seven. This indicates the start of field checking according to the settings of Field II switches.
- 7. marks in positions six and seven. This indicates the start of field checking according to the settings of Field III switches.
- 8. A mark in position one. This control is provided only with the Unit Record Card special feature. The control is used to designate the end of a group of like information, and to advance the group count by one.
- 9. A mark in position four and a mark in position eight designates the word as a sync-check word. This control is used only on the 1232 and must be coordinated with a sync-check card column as programmed on the 534 program card.

Figure 16 is an example of a customer order form and the spread card that can be punched from it. From this application, only one segment of the odd-words is used. The program control sheet (Figure 17) uses marks in the 8 position to store the even-words, and marks in the 5 and 8 positions (Segmented Word feature) to store the information from the odd words. Customer number and salesman number are shown being stored as identification data (marks in positions 3 and 8). This feature is available with either the Multiple Spread-Card or Unit Record Card special features.

NOTE: If the item descriptions shown in Figure 16 are printed in reflective ink, a special feature is not required in order to read the odd words. In this case, only a mark in position 8 of the program control sheet is needed.

To accommodate a customer order number, the Master Mark special feature is used (Figure 18). The 534 program card, which is used to control punching, indicates the punching of order number (master-mark data), customer number and salesman number (identification data) by the 2 punches in columns 2 through 14. The item quantities are called for by the 9 punches in columns 15 through 80. The zero in column 1 instructs the 534 to duplicate information from card to card.

Note that some items in Figure 16 are not marked with a quantity. On the program control sheet, however, all items are programmed to read and store. If the items are programmed to read but are not marked, the spread card will be spaced over the card columns representing those items. In this way, a certain item is represented by two certain card columns.

2 1	CUSTOME	R NU	MBE	2			T				SMAN	NUMB	F D	****			_
Image: Second Second A Image: Second A Image: Second A Image: Second A Image: Second A Image: Second A Image: Second A Image: Second A Band Second A Image: Second A Image: Second A Image: Second A Band Second A Image: Second A Image: Second A Image: Second A Band Second A Image: Second A Image: Second A Image: Second A Gree, Second Addel A Image: Second A Image: Second A Image: Second A Gree, Second Addel A Image: Second A Image: Second A Image: Second A Gree, Second Addel A Image: Second Addel A Image: Second Addel A Image: Second Addel A Gree, Second Addel A Image: Second Addel A Image: Second Addel A Image: Second Addel A Drill (Floor) Model A Image: Second Addel A Image: Second Addel A Image: Second Addel A Drill (Floor) Model A Image: Second Addel A Image: Second Addel A Image: Second Addel A Drill (Floor) Model A Image: Second Addel A Image: Second Addel A Image: Second Addel A Else: Grinder Model A Image: Second Addel A Image: Second Addel A Image: Second Addel A Els) 2 3 4	5		•		,	•			3	4	5	4	,			_
ITEM OUANTITY ITEM OUANTITY Band Saw Model A ITEM Circ. Saw Model A ITEM Bond Saw Model A ITEM Dirit Grow Model B ITEM Dirit Grow Model A ITEM			 6					· · · · ·	-								_
Image: Second							1.1.1	::::::				÷	:::::	11111			=
ITEM OUANTITY Band Saw Model A 1 3 4 6 7 6 6 60 6		5									-			<u> </u>	-		_
ITEM OUANTIY Band Saw Model A 1 3 4 6 7 6 10 20 40 6		!: 5		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		1111											_
Band Saw Model A 1 2 3 4 6 7 6 60				<u>.</u>			1										_
Band Saw Model A Image: Same Saw Model A Image: Saw Model B Image: Saw Model B Image: Saw Model A Image: Saw Model A Image: Saw Model B Image: Saw Model B Image: Saw Model A Image: Saw Model A<	ITEM					QUA	NTITY								_		
Band Saw Model B IIII IIII IIII IIII IIII IIII IIII II			2													100	Ξ
Band Saw Model C Internet int																	Ξ
Circ. Saw Model A Circ. Saw Mo																	_
Circ. Saw Model B Circ. Saw Model C Circ. Saw Model A Port. Drill Model A Port. Drill Model B Circ. Saw Model C Circ. Saw Model C Circ. Saw Model A Circ. Saw Model A Circ. Saw Model C Circ. Saw Model A Circ. Saw Model C Circ. Saw Model A Circ. Sa																	_
Circ. Sow Model C and	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·																
Port. Drill Model A Port. Drill Model A Port. Drill Model A Port. Drill (Floor) Model B Port. Drill (Floor) Model C Port. Drill (Floor) Model B Port. Drill (Floor) Model B Port. Drill (Floor) Port.						5				•							=
Pert. Drill Model B Drill (Floor) Model A Drill (Floor) Model B Drill (Floor) Model A Dr																	_
Drill (Floor) Model A Internet in the internet i																	
Drill (Floor) Model B Image: Imag						~ —			~ ~ ~								=
Sabre Saw Model A Image: Sabre Saw Model B Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Sabre Saw Model A Image: Sabre Saw Model A Image: Sabre Saw Model A Image: Sabre Saw Model A Radial Arm Saw Mod. A Image: Sabre Saw Model A Image: Sabre Saw Model A Image: Sabre Saw Model A Radial Arm Saw Mod. B Image: Sabre Saw Model A Image: Sabre Saw Model A Image: Sabre Saw Model A Elec. Grinder Model B Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Disc Sander Image: Sabre Saw Model A Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Disc Sander Image: Sabre Saw Model A Image: Sabre Saw Model B Image: Sabre Saw Model C Power Hacksaw Mod. B Image: Sabre Saw Model B Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Power Hacksaw Mod. C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Saw Model C Image: Sabre Sabre Sabr																	_
Sabre Saw Model B Sabre Saw Model C Sabre Saw Model C Radial Arm Saw Mod. A Sabre Saw Model C Sabre Saw Model C Radial Arm Saw Mod. B Sabre Saw Model C Sabre Saw Model C Elec. Grinder Model A Sabre Saw Model C Sabre Saw Model C Elec. Grinder Model B Sabre Saw Model C Sabre Saw Model C Beit Sander Model A Sabre Saw Model C Sabre Saw Model C Files. Grinder Model B Sabre Saw Model C Sabre Saw Model C Sabre Sander Model A Sabre Saw Model C Sabre Saw Model C Beit Sander Model B Sabre Saw Model C Sabre Saw Model C Sabre Saw Model C Power Hacksaw Model A Sabre Saw Model C Sabre Saw Model B Sabre Saw Model C Power Hacksaw Model B Sabre Saw Model B Sabre Saw Model B Sabre Saw Model C Sonder Madel A Sabre Saw Model B Sabre Saw Model B Sabre Saw Model B Sabre Saw Model C Sonder Madel A Sabre Saw Model B Sabre Saw Model B Sabre Saw Model B Sabre Saw Model B Sonder Madel A Sabre Saw Model C Sabre Saw Model B Sabre Sabre Saw Model B Sabre Sabre Saw Model B Sabre Sabre Saw Model B																	_
Sabre Saw Model C Radial Arm Saw Mod. A Radial Arm Saw Mod. B																	=
Rodial Arm Saw Mod. A Image: Barl Same Same Mod. B Image: Barl Same Same Same Same Same Same Same Same																	
Radial Arm Saw Mod. B Image: Same Same Same Same Same Same Same Same																	_
Radial Arm Saw Mod. C Image: Sander Model A Image: Sander Model B Elec. Grinder Model B Image: Sander Model A Image: Sander Model A Belt Sander Model B Image: Sander Model B Image: Sander Model A Power Hacksaw Mod. A Image: Sander Model B Image: Sander Model B Power Hacksaw Mod. A Image: Sander Model B Image: Sander Model B Power Hacksaw Mod. C Image: Sander Model B Image: Sander Model B Power Hacksaw Mod. C Image: Sander Model B Image: Sander Model B Power Hacksaw Mod. C Image: Sander Model B Image: Sander Model B Power Hacksaw Mod. C Image: Sander Model B Image: Sander Model B Power Hacksaw Mod. C Image: Sander Model B Image: Sander Model B Image: Sander Model B Image: Sander Model B Image: Sander Model B Image: Sander Model C Image: Sander Model B Image: Sander Model B Lathe Model B Image: Sander Model C Image: Sander Model B Image: Sander Model C Image: Sander Model C Image: Sander Model C Jointer Planer Model C Image: Sander Model C Image: Sander Model C Jointer Planer Model C Image: Sander Model C Image:			11217				::::::										
Elec. Grinder Model A Elec. Grinder Model C Disc Sander Belt Sander Model A Belt Sander Model A Power Hacksaw Mod. A Power Hacksaw Mod. C Flee. Hedgetrimmer Lathe Model A Lathe Model A Lathe Model A Lathe Model A Lathe Model A Lathe Model A Lathe Model B CUST. SLM 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 11 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 T E N Lathe Model A Lathe Model C Jointer Planer Mode Molder Planer Mode Mo			6														
Elec. Grinder Model B Elec. Grinder Model A Elec. Grinder Model A Belt Sander Model A Belt Sander Model A Belt Sander Model A Belt Sander Model B CUST. In the set of																	Ξ
Elec. Grinder Model C Disc Sander Belt Sander Model A Belt Sander Model A Power Hacksaw Mod. A Power Hacksaw Mod. C Elec. Hedgetrimmer A Elec. Hedgetrimmer A Elec. Hedgetrimmer A Elec. Hedgetrimmer A Lathe Model A Lathe Model C Jointer Planer Mode Molder Planer Mode Molde					:::::												Ξ
Disc Sander IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII					:::::										:::::		_
Belt Sander Model A Belt Sander Model B Power Hacksaw Mod. A Power Hacksaw Mod. B Power Hacksaw Mod. C III E. Belt Sander Model B Power Hacksaw Mod. C III E. Belt Sander Model A Power Hacksaw Mod. C III E. Belt Sander Model A Lathe Model A Lathe Model C Jointer Planer Molder Planer Molder Planer Molder Planer Molder Planer Molder Planer Molder Planer Molder Planer Molder Planer Molder Planer Molder Planer Molder Planer												20	40			100	_
Derri Hacksow Model A Power Hacksow Mod. B Power Hacksow Mod. C Power Hacksow Model B Lathe Model A Lathe Model A Jointer Planer Mode Molder Planer Mode	Belt Sander Model A	:::::															_
Power Hacksaw Mod. B Power Hacksaw Mod. C Elec. Hedgetrimmer A Lathe Model A Lathe Model C Jointer Planer Cust. III IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	Belt Sander Model B																=
Power Hacksow Mod. C Image: Custor index star ind	Power Hacksaw Mod. A		-											:::::			=
Elec. Hedgetrimmer A Elec. Hedgetrimmer A Lathe Model A Lathe Model C Jointer Planer Mode Molder Plan	Power Hacksaw Mod. B	:::::	:::::		:::::										:::::		=
Elec. Hedgetrimmer ITEN ITEN <td>Power Hacksaw Mod. C</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>10</td> <td>20</td> <td>40</td> <td>60</td> <td>80</td> <td>100</td> <td>=</td>	Power Hacksaw Mod. C				-						10	20	40	60	80	100	=
Lathe Model A Lathe Model B Lathe Model CUST. N0. SLM 1 2 3 4 5 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 Jointer Planer Model CUST. N0. SLM 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 22 <	Elec. Hedgetrimmer A	:::::				:::::				::.::				:::::	:::::		Ξ
Lathe Model B Lathe Model C Jointer Planer No. SLM I 2 3 4 5																	
Jointer Planer Model C	Lathe Model A	00.050	CULCT								ITEN						
Jointer Planer Model C	Lathe Model B			SLM	1 2 3	4 5	6 7 8 9	10 11	12 13	14 15	16 17 18	19 20 21	22 23	24 25	26 27	28 29	30 31 3
Molder Planer Mode Molder Planer Mode 1		00000	0000	0000	0000	00000	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0000	lo olo i	olo n lo n lo	0 0 0 0 0 0	10 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0
Molder Planer Mode Volder Volde	02 1		• • • 10 11 1 1 1 1	12 13 14 5	16171019	20 21 22 23 24 1 1 1 1 1	25 27 27 28 29 30 31 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	121333435 11111	4 37 3 8 3 9 4	0 41 42 43 4	14 45 46 47 48 45 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	39959995955 1111111	65) 58 59 6 1 1 1 1	JE1 62 63 6	465 66 67 6 1 1 1 1	a 69 70 71 72	13 14 15 16 17
Molder Pioner Mode 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	Molder Planer Mode	_ 1	2 2 2	, " ,	2, 2, 2, 2,	,,,,,,		11	11	11	111		11				
Image: Second																	
Image: Second	[d]3	s 3 a 3 3 3	3 🔳 3 3	3303	3 3 3 3	2 2 3 3 3	3 3 3 3 3 3 3	12 13	3 3 3 3	3 3 3	3 3 3 3 3 3	3 3 3 3 3 3 3	na 213 :	12 213 3	3 3 3 3 3		
		• • • • • •	4 4 4 4	4 4 4 4	4 4 • • •	4 4 4 4 4	4 4 4 4 4 4	4 4 4	4 4 4 4	4 4 4	4 4 4 4 4 4	4 4 4 4 4 4	 4 4 4	* 4 4 4 /	4 4 4 4 /	e 4 4 4 4	4 4 4 4 4
		5 5 5 5 📕 5	5 5 5 5	5555	5 5 5	5 5 5 5	5 5 5 5 5 5 5	5 5 5 5	5 5 5 5	5 5 5 5	5 5 5 5 5 5	5 5 5 5 5 5	5 5 5 5	5 5 5 5	5 5 5 5 1	5 5 5 5	5 5 5 5 5
	Q	6 6 6 6 6	6666	666	6 6 6 6	6 6 6 6 6	66666	6666	6666	6 6 6 6	6 6 6 6 6 6	6 6 6 6 6 6 6	6 6 6 🖬	6 6 6 6 I	6 6 6 6	e e e e e	6 6 6 6 6
18 18 818 818 818 818 818 818 818 818 8		,,,,,	1111	177	$\frac{1}{1}$	1 177		1 17	11.11	h .h.	1, 1, 1,	11111	hin	n_{1}	1, 1,	1, 1, 1	hin
MARK C DATA C 19 919 919 919 919 919 919 919 919 91		1			8 8 8 9		8 8 8 8 8 8	8 8 8 8			ala ala ala						
ב מנה		MARK		r^ ¥		010 010 0		010 Ale	MA			010 010 010	-10 010		010 010	010 010 4	
	a	23456	1 2 10 1	12 13 14 5	3 3 3 1607 1919	3 3 3 3 3 20 2 22 23 24	13 313 313 313 75 2627 2027 3021	313 313	2 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 3	13 3 3 13 3 3	317 313 319 1465 4667 4669	201 2223 2405	212 213 212 213	ទាំង ទាំង សំណានរល	515 515 6465 6667	66669 20 21 2 66669 20 21 2	213 14 75 76 7

	BC	Dayly		~ /*	YZ C	OMPANY		1	Dela					Sterie Los	<u>ح</u>
CUSTOME	hun	1920	,	1	-	Γ		٦.		SMAN	NUMB			+	=
• • • ¥• •	1.		,	Y		ι.		. 4	[]	4				×	• 13
	12		•	÷	÷			ан. 1	÷					÷	
	11		,	Ť				-	÷					÷	•
	1			÷					÷					÷	
· · · · ·			: • •	÷		1									E
ITEM	t			-	QUA	NTITY						-			
	₩	1		•			,	•	•	10		48			==================================
Bond Sew Model A				-										-	<u> </u>
Band Saw Model B				-				11.107		1000				=	
Bond Sew Medel C				-										-	
Circ. Saw Model A				Ξ										=	
Circ. Saw Medel 8				-										=	
Circ. Saw Medel C	<u> </u>		-	-			<u> </u>				10	- 44		-	<u></u> =
Port, Drill Model A				Ξ										-	
Port, Dritt Model B				=										<u> </u>	
Drill (Floer) Medel A	<u> </u>			=	1.1.1									Ξ	
Drill (Floor) Medal B				=										-	
Sebre Saw Medel A	- <u> </u>			I						- W		44		T	
Sabre Saw Medal B														=	
Sabre Saw Model C				Ξ										Ξ	
				-										-	
Radial Arm Sew Mod. A Radial Arm Sew Mod. B				=										-	
				<u> </u>						10		***		I	<u></u>
Rediel Arm Sew Mod. C			 	Ξ										=	
Elec. Grinder Model A				Ξ										Ξ	
Elec. Grinder Model B	_			-										=	
Elec. Grinder Model C	_	_												-	
Disc Sender Belt Sander Model A	<u> </u>							<u></u>				46		-	
				_										=	
Beit Sender Model B				_										=	:
Power Hacksow Mod. A	_		*****	_											
Power Hacksow Mod. B															
Power Hecksew Med. C	—T						- Y			- <u>10</u>				E	- 194
Elec. Hedgetrimmer A	-			-					•					-	
Elec. Hedgetrimmer B	_			_				_							:
Lathe Model A	-	22.55												Ξ	;
Lathe Model B				_											'
Lathe Model C	-			T								- 44		Ξ	<u>.</u>
Jointer Planer		*****												_	
Molder Planer Model A	-									,		11971			
Molder Planer Model B	-		1111	_			:::::			::::		: 197		_	
							:::::								
				-		i.	Ţ		_			40	44		1000
					_		:::::			72221	:::::				*****

Figure 17. Program Control Sheet for Figure 16

If the 1232 is equipped with either the Multiple Spread-Card or Unit Record Card special feature, the programming for salesman number (Figure 17) could have been handled differently. By treating the customer number as identification data, and the salesman number as detail data, the two would not be punched interspersed as shown in Figure 16. In this case, the customer number field could be punched as identification data, and punched first. Salesman number would be treated as detail data and punched as the first detail data in the spread-card. Columns 12, 13, and 14 of the spreadcard would identify the salesman.

On-Line Systems Programming

The IBM 1231 Optical Mark Page Reader contains all the circuitry required to read and store data from each document, and to perform field checking. All marks read from the documents are stored as bits in the 1231 delay lines until transferred to the processing system by the execution of a READ instruction. Field-checking functions are preselected by the field check switches on the 1231 console.

The 1231 can be operated in either of two feed modes: continuous or on-demand. A two-position feed mode switch, labelled CONTINUOUS and ON-DEMAND must be set by the operator to conform to the selected method of processing unit programming.

If the switch is set to CONTINUOUS, documents will feed at a rate of 2000 per hour. In this feed mode, a READ instruction must be given by the computer program within 150 ms after buffer full in the 1231. This will occur once during every 1585 ms. Document feeding in the 1231 is automatic in this mode.

On-demand feeding mode does not require a READ



BE SURE TO MAKE YOUR MARKS HEAVY AND BLACK.

ERASE COMPLETELY ANY MARKS YOU WISH TO CHANGE

MASTER MARK FIELD

Ξ

/. 0 ===== 1 -=== 2 ==== 3 ==== 4 ====	5 6 7 6 9
2. 0 1 2 3 4	5 ::::: 6 :::: 7 :::: 8 :::: 9 ::::
3. 0 1 2 3	5 6 7 8 9
<i>4</i> .0 , , ,	5 6 7 8 9
5. 0 1 2 3 4	\$ 6 7 8 9

NOTE:

The number of master mark words marked must be equal to the number of columns punched (for 1232 use). Number of timing marks should be twice this number.



Figure 18. Master Mark Sheet and Program Card for Figure 16

instruction at any given interval. In this mode, document feeding and the rate of feeding is effectively under control of the computer-programmed READ instruction. Maximum throughput in this mode is 1600 documents per hour.

On-Line Program Instructions

Eight program instructions are provided for operating the 1231 on-line with the IBM 1401, 1440, or 1460 Data Processing Systems. The instructions; six branch (BXXXd), one read (M%S3XXXR), and one stacker select (KA) are all the controls and logic functions necessary when the 1231 is used as an input to these systems.

Publications explaining the specific program instructions, mnemonic codes, and detailed descriptions of continuous and on-demand program routines are listed in the *Systems Reference Library Bibliography* for the system involved.

- B(XXX)1, Auto Select: This instruction tests an indicator which is set when a document is automatically selected by the 1231. The indicator will be reset when it is tested by the program. When this indicator is on, the 1231 does not transfer data to the computer for the selected document.
- B(XXX)2, Buffer Full: This instruction indicates that a document has been read by the 1231, and the data has been stored in the 1231 storage. The indicator will be reset following the execution of the read instruction.
- B(XXX)3, Ready to Read: This branch instruction tests an indicator that is turned on when all normal operating conditions have been satisfied and the start key has been pressed. The indicator will remain on until an interruption in the 1231 occurs.
- B(XXX)4, Hopper Empty: This branch instruction distinguishes an empty hopper condition from other 1231 stop conditions. This instruction is normally used with the end-of-job routine. The branch is turned off by loading the hopper.
- B(XXX)5, Read Error: This branch instruction indicates that the data in the 1231 buffer storage has not been completely transferred to the processing unit. The 1231 stops, and it is necessary to reprocess the top document in the normal pocket. This branch will be turned off when 1231 operation is resumed.

- B(XXX)6, Timing Mark Check: This branch instruction indicates that the count of timing marks on the data sheet does not agree with the setting of the timingmark check switch. Extra or missing timing marks will be detected. When the control timing marks switch is set to YES, a timing mark check indication is sent to the computer 75ms after the rise of buffer full. When the control timing marks switch is set to NO, the timing mark check indication is sent to the computer immediately following the rise of buffer full. This branch is turned off by pressing the reset key when normal operation is resumed.
- M%S3(XXX)R, Read: This instruction causes a readout of the data in the 1231 to the computer storage area designated by the B address. Data is transferred



serially, high-order first. The B address is the highorder address of the computer read-in area. If the Master Mark special feature is used, the master-mark information will always precede detail data transferred to the computer.

In the On-Demand mode, sheet feed is automatic when a buffer empty condition is indicated.

KA, Stacker Select: This instruction provides for selection of certain documents at the programmer's option. The selection must be made within 50 ms after buffer full. No selection instruction is necessary to select the normal pocket.

NOTE: Documents may also be directed to the select pocket by the 1231, independent of the computer program. See field-checking switches under Keys and Lights.

For the specific program instructions and mnemonic codes used with the 1231, refer to the Systems Reference Library Bibliography for the system involved.

When properly implemented, the Optical Mark Page Readers provide economical and reliable conversion of source data into a machine-usable form. However; to achieve the best level of performance, reasonable controls should be used in the following areas:

- 1. Documents should be stored under controlled conditions of temperature and humidity.
- 2. Documents should be handled carefully to minimize mutilation.
- 3. When documents are being marked, proper procedures should be followed. Marks should be made with a black, lead pencil, and should completely fill the mark position. (A Number 2 pencil is recommended.) Erasures should be made carefully and completely.
- 4. Prior to processing documents, the machine should be properly set up.
- 5. Test documents should be run and checked for correct results. Selected documents should be analyzed to determine the reason for selection.

IBM 1232 Setup

When the 1232 is to operate with an IBM 534 Card Punch, the following setup sequence should be followed:

- 1. Set up the 534 Card Punch. See 534 Setup.
- 2. Turn the main line switch to POWER ON.
- 3. Set the punch mode switch to either WORD or SEGMENT.
- 4. Set the timing mark check switch to the unitsposition count of the timing marks on the detail data sheets. This setting should agree with the count of the marks on the program control sheet. If Master Mark is being used, the count need not be set to run the master mark sheet.
- 5. Set the master-mark switch and/or the unit record card switch to the appropriate position.
- 6. Set the field-checking switches to their proper settings. The check-length switch should be set to either WORD or SEGMENT; the select-condition switch should be set to OFF, NO MARK, MULTI-MARK, or OTHER-THAN-ONE; the read mode switch should be set to SING RESP, MULT RESP, SING RESP SEL UNC, or MULT RESP SEL UNC.
- 7. Joggle the data sheets and place them in the hopper face up, top edge to the left. The program control sheet must be the top document. The documents should be well-joggled to keep the edges as even as possible. If master-mark data sheets are used, place them on top of the detail data sheets to which they apply.

- 8. Press RESET. This raises the hopper to feeding position.
- 9. Press PROGRAM LOAD to clear previous control bits.
- 10. Check the adjustment of the front hopper side plate. The documents should be held against the rear side plate without binding. Check for a bind by gently depressing the hopper platform about 1/2 inch. It should return quickly to normal operating height.
- 11. Press START. This will feed the program control sheet. The machine will stop after the program control sheet has been read.
- 12. Press START. This will start the feeding of the detail sheets. Feeding will now be controlled by a sheetfeed instruction from the 534 program card. When either the Multiple Spread-Card or Unit Record Card special feature is installed, feeding is controlled by sensing a 1232 buffer-empty condition.
- 13. Check the punched output from the first card against the data read.

IBM 534 Setup

Setting up the IBM 534 Card Punch for operation with the 1232 requires the following procedures:

- 1. Turn the mainline switch on.
- 2. Mount the proper program card onto the program drum.
- 3. Position the program drum on the shaft and lower the starwheels to reading position.
- 4. Press the release key to position all starwheels.
- 5. Load blank cards into the hopper.
- 6. Press the feed key once.
- 7. Turn the auto feed and auto skip/auto dup switches on.
- 8. Turn the auto punch/key punch switch to AUTO PUNCH.
- 9. If information is to be duplicated, slip the master duplication card into the feed slots at the read station and press the feed key. If no information is to be duplicated, press the feed key and then the release key so that a card is registered at both the read station and the punch station.

IBM 1231 Setup

A fully-loaded 1231 is set up according to the following procedure:

- 1. Turn the main line switch to POWER ON.
- 2. Set the feed mode switch to either CONTINUOUS or ON-DEMAND.
- 3. Set the timing mark check switch to the units

position count of the timing marks on the detail data sheet. This number should agree with the count of the marks on the program-control sheet. When master-mark sheets are processed, they are not checked for a timing mark count.

- 4. Set the control timing marks switch to YES or NO, depending on whether or not IBM 1230 processable documents are being read.
- 5. Set the master-mark switch to either ON or OFF, depending upon the application.
- 6. Set the field-checking switches to their proper settings. The check-length switches should be set to either WORD or SEGMENT; the select condition switches should be set to OFF, NO-MARK, or OTHER-THAN-ONE; the read mode switch should be set to SING RESP, MULT RESP, SING RESP SEL UNC OF MULT RESP SEL UNC.
- 7. Joggle the data sheets and place them in the hopper face up, top edge to the left; and place the programcontrol sheet on top. If the Master-Mark feature is used, place the master-mark sheet for the first group on top of the first group. The documents must be well-joggled, prior to insertion in the hopper, to keep the edges even and to ensure straight feeding.
- 8. Press PROGRAM LOAD to clear storage.
- 9. Press RESET to raise the hopper to feeding position. The front hopper side plate is operator-adjustable. This plate should keep the documents against the rear hopper side plate without binding. To check for binds, depress the hopper platform about 1/2 inch. The platform should return to normal operating height without hesitation.
- 10. Press START. This will feed the program-control sheet and the machine will stop.

11. Press START. Sheets will feed immediately when the feed mode switch is set to CONTINUOUS and the system is not in a "halt" condition. If the system is in a "halt" condition, the start key on the system must be pressed before feeding will start.

When the feed-mode switch is set at ON-DEMAND, pressing the start key causes one data sheet to feed. Further feeding of documents is under control of the computer-programmed READ instruction; as soon as the buffer has been read out, the next data sheet is fed automatically.

Restart Procedures

Restart procedures for the 1231 and 1232 are similar. Generally, if a condition occurs which causes the 1231/1232 hopper to lower, caution must be exercised in restoring operation. When the machine is in a stopped condition, pressing of RESET in either the 1231 or 1232 will destroy data in the Optical Mark Page Reader's storage. This will leave part of a card unpunched, or prevent transfer of a complete data sheet to the computer.

Pressing of the stop key on the 1231/1232 causes the machine to complete the processing of the data sheet being read (or just read), then causes the hopper platform to lower. In order to return the hopper platform to proper feeding level, the reset key must be pressed. Any time that RESET is pressed to raise the hopper platform, care must be exercised to ensure that the last document read has been completely processed. This is accomplished by placing the receiving unit (either the processing unit or the 534 punch) in operating condition, and allowing the unit to complete the processing before pressing the reset key on the Optical Mark Page Reader.

Operator procedures for various stop conditions are contained in the following chart:

INDICATION	CAUSE	RESTART PROCEDURE
Feed Check Light	Document	1. Press STOP.
	Misfeed	2. Clear document (if necessary).
		3. Press 534 release key (1232 only) and destroy card just released.
		4. Place document(s) to be reprocessed on top of documents in hopper.
		If jammed document had passed read head it need not be reprocessed.
		5. Press RESET.
		6. Press START.
Feed Check Light	Empty 1231/	1. Refill hopper.
Ũ	1232 hopper	2. Press RESET.
		3. Press START.
Feed Check Light	Full Stacker	1. Empty stacker.
Ũ	1231/1232	2. Press RESET.
		3. Press START.

INDICATION	CAUSE	RESTART PROCEDURE
Feed Check Light	More than one data sheet fed	 Press release key on 534 and destroy card just released if it has started punching. Press RESET and STOP. Hold both keys depressed until double- feed documents have been completely run out. Place documents to be reprocessed on top of documents in 1231/1232 hopper. Press RESET to raise hopper platform. Press START.
Punch Check Light (1232)	Empty Hopper (534)	 Refill 534 hopper. Press the 534 feed key two times. Operation resumes automatically. NOTE: If the 1232 is to be filled while the 534 is stopped: Refill 534 hopper and press 534 feed key two times. After the 534 completes any punching to be done on the last data sheet, press the 1232 stop key. Fill the 1232 hopper, putting the added data sheets under the ones still in the hopper if any sequence must be kept. Press the 1232 reset key. Press the 1232 start key.
System Stopped Light (1231)	Processing Unit is in a "halt" condition	 If the processing unit halt condition is not caused by the 1231, no 1231 action is required. If operating in "Continuous" feed mode and if REFEED SEL DOC is also lit, the last document read must be reprocessed. In this case: 1. Press STOP. 2. Remove the top document from the select stacker and place it on top of the documents in the hopper. 3. Press RESET. 4. Press START.
Process Check Light (1232)	Parity error detected	 Release and destroy card being punched in 534 when stop occurred. Reload program control sheet. (If pressing RESET does not clear Process Check Light). Any document not past the read head should be placed on top of documents in the hopper. Press RESET. Press START.
Process Check Light (1231)	Parity error detected. The error may be caused by a slow-starting clock in the computer, a timing-mark check, or a failure of data to load into 1231 storage.	 Place last data sheet in normal stacker back on top of documents in hopper. Press RESET. If PROCESS CHECK light does not turn out, the program control sheet must be reloaded and the procedure under 1231 SETUP must be followed. Press START.

INDICATION	CAUSE	RESTART PROCEDURE
Process Check Light (1231) with Re-feed Sel Doc Light	Parity error detected too late to stop the signal to feed the next doc.	Similar to procedure under Process Check Light 1231 except that two documents are reprocessed; one from the normal stacker and one from the select stacker.
Punch Check Light (1232)	Card misfeed (534) or a sync- check condition detected.	 Simultaneously press STOP and RESET; hold these keys depressed until all data sheets have run out of the 1232. Remove any cards from the 534 involved in the misfeed. Destroy these cards. Determine which card was the last correctly punched card. If Multiple Spread-card or Unit Record Card feature is being used, find first card associated with data sheet being read at time of jam. Destroy it and all succeeding cards. Place the 534 back to the previous operating status by feeding cards to properly register a card at the punch station. If there is duplicated data, remove the last good card from the stacker and hand register it at the 534 read station. Locate, in the 1232 normal stacker, the data sheet read when the jam occurred. Place document(s) to be reprocessed on top of documents in the 1232 hopper. Press RESET. Press START.
Punch Check Light (1232)	Full Stacker (534)	1. Empty the 534 stacker. Restart is automatic.

Master Mark Feature

Whenever Optical Mark Page Readers are equipped with the Master Mark special feature, they can recognize a master data sheet and retain up to 10 words of information from the sheet. The master data sheet is identified by a special, preprinted mark similar to the timing marks, and located between the timing marks and the right edge of the data sheet (Figure 18). Master data information represents data that is to be associated with all subsequent data sheets until a new master sheet is read. Thus, data that is common to a series of data sheets needs to be entered only once. The total storage capacity of the 1231 is increased by 10 words when this feature is installed.

Whenever the Master Mark feature is installed, the first ten words of storage are reserved for use by this feature. If the master mark switch is on, master-mark data will read in and change whenever a new master mark is recognized. At the time the master sheet is being read, data is automatically checked for multimarks. If multi-marks are detected, the document is selected and the Refeed Sel Doc light turns on. If the master mark switch is off, the first data read from the data sheet goes into storage position 11 in the 1232, and into storage word position 12 in the 1231.

Whenever the 1231 is equipped with this feature, 20 positions of computer storage must be reserved for the ten words of master-mark storage. Whenever the 1232 is equipped with this feature, it is possible, through master-mark switch control, to punch the master data into all cards being punched until a new master sheet has been read. New master information automatically clears the storage unit of any previous master data.

When fewer than 10 columns of master-mark data are to be punched, the number of timing marks printed on the master-mark data sheet must be reduced accordingly. For example; if six columns of master-mark data were to be punched, no more or no less than 12 timing marks should be printed on the master-mark data sheet.

Whenever 20 timing marks are printed on the mastermark data sheet, 10 words of information will be transferred to the punch before any identification data will transfer.

NOTE: Master-mark data and identification data are called for by the same program card code in the 534. It is, therefore, imperative that the correct number of timing marks be printed for the application.

Segmented Word Feature

This feature, available on the 1232 only, provides two separate functions: (1) the ability to read and punch one segment at a time, and (2) the ability to punch one word into two card columns.

Under control of the punch mode switch, each word of detail data on the data sheet can be treated as two units of information. A two-position switch marked SEGMENT and WORD controls the mode of operation. When the switch is set to SEGMENT, marks in positions 0 through 4 are directed into one card column, and marks in positions 5 through 9 punch in the next card column. When the switch is set to WORD, each word in storage is punched into one card column. In either segment or word mode of operation, a maximum of three punches can be punched into any one card column. For example: if the punch mode switch were set to WORD, and positions 3, 7, and 9 were marked, the associated card column would be punched with 3, 7, and 9 punches (Figure 19). If more than three marks were read in one segment (while in segment mode) or in one word (while in word mode), a 12 punch would be substituted for the normal punches.

NOTE: When the punch mode switch is set to SEG-MENT, master mark and/or identification data is punched on a word-per-card-column basis. Detail data punches on a segment-per-card-column basis. Master-mark data is available when the Master Mark special feature is installed; identification data is available when either the Multiple Spread-Card or Unit Record Card special features are installed.

Another function of the Segmented Word feature allows the reading of only one segment of any word or words on the data sheet (see *Program Control Sheet*, items 2 and 3). Data sheets can be processed, which contain non-reflective inks in one segment (such as a listing from a high-speed printer or handwritten information), while the other segment can be used for marking data. Complete programming flexibility is available so that any segment can be read or not read according to job requirements. If only one segment of a word is programmed to read, only one column of the card is punched for that word.

Special Card Features

Two special features, Multiple Spread-Card and Unit Record Card, are available for the 1232, and enable full utilization of a data sheet as an entry form. However,



Figure 19. Segment and Word Schematic

both features cannot be installed on the same 1232.

Normally, the Multiple Spread-Card feature is used when data is intended for entry into a computer. This feature enables several items of detail data to be punched into a single card, with up to four cards punched per data sheet.

The Unit Record Card feature, which is used mainly with punched card equipment, allows a separate card to be punched for each item of detail data on the data sheet, up to a maximum of 99 cards.

Because each card produced for a data sheet must also carry some identification to its data sheet, both of these special features can separate identification data from detail data. Thus, each card produced for a given data sheet can have identification punching in it.

Multiple Spread-Card Feature

This feature is available on the 1232 only, and allows up to four cards to be punched for each data sheet read. The following four types of information can be punched into each card punched for any one data sheet:

- 1. Master-mark data (if the Master Mark special feature is installed).
- 2. Identification data (page number, customer number, etc.).

- 3. A portion of the detail data (detail data is divided equally among all cards punched for the data sheet).
- 4. Card number (a machine generated sequence number identifying a particular card of the sequence punched for each data sheet). Card number must be programmed (in the 534 program card) to punch either preceding or following the master/identification data fields.

The functional logic for the Multiple Spread-Card feature is shown in Figure 20. Note that the master mark and identification data are punched into each card. The number of card columns punched in the detail field of each card must be the same. The number of words or segments of detail data divided by the number of cards to be punched for each data sheet determines the number of detail field columns that must be punched in each card. When the punch mode switch is set to SEGMENT (Segmented Word Feature), each word of detail data in storage is punched into two card columns.

The master mark or identification data fields may be split or preceded by other types of data (detail, duplicated, or skips) as long as the card number field either precedes or follows the master/identification data fields. The last information programmed to punch from the 1232 must be detail data.



• Figure 20. Multiple Spread-Card Data Flow

If the number of stored words from the data sheet cannot be divided so that the card fields are even in column number, the width of the card fields should be increased by one column. For example; if 62 words or segments are to be punched into four cards, each of the first three cards would have 16 columns punched. This would leave 14 columns in the fourth card. In punching the fourth card, the machine would detect an empty storage condition after the fourteenth column and automatically signal the 534 to skip the card out, leaving the last two columns in this field blank. (Not more than three columns should have to be skipped if the field length is set up properly.)

When the number of cards to be punched for a given data sheet is calculated, the total effect of the number of columns of master-mark data, identification data, cardnumber data and detail data must be considered. Master data, identification data and card number go into each card; detail data is split into as many cards as necessary. To determine the number of cards needed for an application, let "K" represent the total number of columns (master, identification, duplicated, skipped, and card number columns). Then, 80 minus K equals the number of columns available in each card for detail data punching. The number of detail data columns needed, divided by the quantity of 80 minus K, will equal the number of cards needed for the application. When this formula is used, any fraction of a card must be considered as a whole card.

Assume that in a typical application there are ten columns of master data, ten columns of identification data, and six columns of duplicated data. Then, K equals 10 plus 10 plus 6 plus 1 (card number), and 80 minus K equals 53. If there were 130 segments on the data sheet to be punched, then 130 divided by 53 equals the number of cards to be punched. Because this division equals 2.45, three must be used as the number of cards to be punched. Three will not divide equally into 130 (43.3) so the detail field must be set at 44 columns. Skipping of the two blank columns on the last card will be automatic (three times 44 equals 132). The number of columns punched into each card is determined by the number of 9's punched in the 534 program card. Each 9 in the program card calls for a column of detail data to be punched.



Figure 21. Unit Record Card Data Flow

Unit Record Card Feature

This feature, available only on the 1232, enables the 1232/534 to punch a separate card for each group of data on a data sheet. A group of data consists of all the words programmed to read between any two programmed end-of-group marks. Cards will be produced for all groups of data in which at least one word of detail data has been marked. No cards are punched for any group of data which has not been marked. Also, if the data sheet is selected by 1232 circuitry because of some reading or marking error, no card is produced for that data sheet. Each card produced can contain:

- 1. Master-mark information (if the Master Mark feature is installed and being used).
- 2. Identification data (page number, order number, salesman number, etc.).

- 3. Group number (identifies a particular item or group of information).
- 4. Marked detail data (quantity).

Words in a group of data can be of any number and in any format as long as an equal number of words is programmed to read. This satisfies 534 programming.

The 1232 can count the number of end-of-group marks (up to 99), and this number can be punched into a card by the 534. Group-count punching requires two

card columns. The counter is restored to a count of "one" when a new data sheet is fed. Group count must be programmed to punch either before or after masteridentification data fields. The master-identification data fields can be split by detail data, duplicated data, or by skips (but not by group count) as long as the last data programmed to punch from the 1232 is detail data. The functional logic of the Unit Record Card feature is shown in Figure 21. Master-mark data and identification data, if used, is punched into every card. When the Master Mark feature is used, master-mark data changes only when a new master-mark data sheet is read. Identification data changes with each new data sheet read. Master-mark data and identification data are both called for by the same punch in the 534 program card (a 2-punch). When the Master Mark feature is being used, master-mark data always precedes identification data in the punch-out sequence.

A sample application of the Unit Record Card special feature is shown in Figures 22 and 23. The data on the left half of the data sheet in Figure 22 is coded as identification data. This data is common to all detail data (in this case, the distributions) and is punched into the first part of the cards shown in Figure 23. The data on the right half of the data sheet is treated as detail data. In this example, all distributions were marked. If, however, one of the distribution fields was not marked, no card would have been punched for that distribution.

NOTE: On the program control sheet, the last word in each of the distribution fields would contain an endof-group code for defining the end of the fields.

The 534 program card, used to control the punching of the cards shown in Figure 23, would be punched with 3's in columns one and two (to punch group or card number), with 2's in columns 3 through 24 (to punch the repetitive identification information), and with 9's in columns 25 through 37 (to punch the detail data).

MAINTENANCE CHARGE DISTRIBUTION

MARK COMPLETELY ALL DATA ON THIS SIDE

	20200				22222				
0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
	22222					:::::	:::::		
					22222		:::::	:::::	::::
0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
		10000			*****	:::::		::::::	::::
			_						

	22222									
0	1	2	3	4	MONTH	5	6	7	8	9
0		2	3		DAY			_	8	

-									2222
0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
		:::::				:::::			
			-						
0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
	:::::		:::::		=====		:::::		
	:::::							30000	
0	1	2	з	4	5	6	7	8	9
	:::::	=====			=====				
							-	11111	

0	1				22222				
		2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
					11111				
		:::::							::::
0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
								:::::	::::
							:::::		::::
0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9

MAKE ALL MARKS WITH A BLACK NO. 2 LEAD PENCIL. ERASE COMPLETELY ANY MARKS CHANGED.

				_						
					DISTRIBU					
0	1	2	3	4		5	6	7	8	9
										-
					DEPT					
0	1	2	3	4		 5	6	 7	8	9
			::::::							
					NO.					
0	1	2	3	4		 5	6	7	8	9
				:::::		:::::				
_							:::::			
0	1	2	3	4		5	6	7	8	9
-					DOLLAR			=====		
_										
0	1	2	3	4		5	6	7	8	9
					AMT.	:::::	-	:::::		
		:::::				-				
										20000
0	1	2	 3	4	CENTS	5	6	7	8	9
					CENTS					
0	1	2	3	4	CENTS	5	6	7	8	9
0 	1 //////////////////////////////	2 ///////////////////////////////	3 ///////////////////////////////	4 []SECOP		5 BUTION 5	6 //////////////////////////////	7 	8 7/////// 8	9 //////// 9
0 	1 	2 	3 	4 	ND DISTRI	5 BUTION 	6 		8 	9 ///////
0 	1 //////////////////////////////	2 ///////////////////////////////	3 ///////////////////////////////	4 []SECOP		5 BUTION 5	6 //////////////////////////////	7 	8 7/////// 8	9 //////// 9
0 	1 1 1	2 7 2 2 2	3 3 3	4 	ND DISTRI	5 3UTION 5 5 5	6 6 6	7 7 7	8 	9 9 9
0 		2 2 	3 	4 	ND DISTRII	5 BUTION 5 	6 6 	7 7 	8 7/////// 8 	9 7////// 9
0 	1 1 1	2 7 2 2 2	3 3 3	4 	ND DISTRI	5 3UTION 5 5 5	6 6 6	7 7 7	8 	9 9 9
0 	1 1 1 1 1	2 2 2 2 2 2 2	3 3 3 3 3 3	4 () SECOP ====== 4 ====== 4 ====== 4	ND DISTRII	5 300TION 300TION 5 30000 5 30000 5 30000 5	6 6 6 6 6 6 	7 7 7 7 7 	8 8 8 8 8 8	9 9 9 9 9
0	1 1 1 	2 2 2 2 	3 3 3 	4 	ND DISTRII	5 3UTION 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	6 6 6 	7 7 7 	8 8 8 	9 9 9 9
0 	1 H 1 1 	2 2 2 2 2 2 2	3 3 3 3 3 3	4 () SECOP ====== 4 ====== 4 ====== 4	ND DISTRII	5 300TION 300TION 5 30000 5 30000 5 30000 5	6 6 6 6 6 6 	7 7 7 7 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	8 8 8 8 8 8	9 9 9 9 9
	1 1 1 1 1 	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 	4 [SECOI ===== 4 ====== 4 ====== 4 ====== 4 ===== 4 ======= 4 ======= 4 ====== 4 ======= 4 ======= 4 ========	dept Dept NO.	5 SUTION 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	6 6 6 6 6 6 6	7 7	8 8	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
0 	1 H 1 1 	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 	3 3 3 3 3 	4 [SECOI ===== 4 ====== 4 ====== 4 ====== 4 ===== 4 ======= 4 ======= 4 ====== 4 ======= 4 ======= 4 ========	ND DISTRII	5 SUTION 5 	6 6 6 6 6 6 	7 7 7 7 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	8 8 8 8 8 8 	9 9 9 9 9 9 9
0 	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 	4 SECOP SECOP 4 	dept Dept NO.	5 SUTION 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 	7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	8 8 	9 9
	1 	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 	4 (SECO) SECO) 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	NO.	5 SUTION SUTION SUTION SUTION S S S S S S S S	6 6 	7 	8 8	9 9
0 	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 	4 SECOP SECOP 4 	dept Dept NO.	5 SUTION 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 	7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	8 8 	9 9
	1 	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 	4 (SECO) SECO) 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	NO.	5 SUTION SUTION SUTION SUTION S S S S S S S S	6 6 	7 	8 8	9 9
	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 	3 3 	4 	DEPT NO. DOLLAR AMT.	5 SUITON SUITON 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 	7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	8 8 	9 7/////// 9 9 9 9 9 10 9 10 9 10 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
0 ////// 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0		2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 	4 ()SECOI 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	NO.	5 SUTION 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	6 	7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	8 	9

								11111		
0	1	2	3	4		5	6	7	8	9
:::::			:::::						:::::	-
					DEPT					
0	1	2	3	4		5	6	7	8	9
					NO.					
0	1	2	3	4		5	6	7	8	9
									:::::	
0	1	2	3	4		5	6	7	8	9
	-			:::::	DOLLAR			:::::		
-								:::::	:::::	:::::
0	1	2	3	4		5	6	7	8	9
	:::::			:::::	AMT.	:::::		:::::	:::::	::::
:::::		:::::		*****			:::::		:::::	
	:::::		:::::	:::::			::::>	:::::	:::::	::::
0	1	2	3	4	CENTS	5	6	7	8	9

APPROVAL SIGNATURE

• Figure 22. Sample Data Sheet for Unit Record Application

_
	D I S T		CH/		GE		D,	AT	E									AP			/A	ι			1	DI	STI	RIB	U	IC	N	I																																														
	, NO	٢	NU	M	BER					ľ	Ū	M	BER	2				NI	JIV	BE			DI N	UN	AB	ER						0																																														
1	0	,	ļ	0						12	0	0	0 15	0	0	0	0	0	21	0	0	0	25	0	0 27	0	0	0 30	31	1	33	0 34	0 35	0	0 37	0 38	0 30 -	0 10 4	0 (11 4	0 (2 (0 13 4) (4 4) (5 4) (6 4) (74) () 41	0	0	0	0 53	0 54	0 55 :	0 54 :	0 (57 s	0 (90 5) () (• •) (116) (2 6) () (4 8) 5) (• •) (7 (0 N (0 10 7) (07) (17) 2 7	D (37) 4 7	0 75 1	0 (n: :	0 77	0 78	0 71))
li	Ì	1	1	İ	1	1	1 1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	_	1	1		1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1 1	11	1	i 1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1 1	1 1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	11	1	1	1 1	1	11	1 1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	I
2	2	2	2	2		2	2 2	2	2	2	2	2		2	2	2	2		2	2		2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2 :	2 :	2 :	2 :	2 2	2 2	2 2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2 :	2 2	2 2	2 2	2 2	2 2	2 2	2 2	2 2	2 2	2 :	2 :	2 :	2 2	2 2	2 2	2 2	2 :	2 :	2 :	2	2	2	2	2
3	3	3	3	3	3		3 [3	3	3		3	3	3	3	3	3		3	3		3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3 :	3 :	3 :	3 3	13	13	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3 :	3 :	3 3	13	3 :	3 3	1	3 :	3 :	3	3 :	3 :	3 :	3 :	1	3 :	3 :	3 :	3	3 :	3	3	3		}
4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4 4	4	4	4		4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	•	4	14	14	14	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4 4	14	14	14	14	14	14	Ļ	14	1	4	4	1	14	Ļ	•	Ļ	4	4 (4	4	4	. 4	ŀ
5	5	5	5	5	5 :	5	5 !	;	i 5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5		5	5	5	5	5	5 !	5 !	5	5 (i !	5 !	i (i 5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5 9	5 !	5 5	5 5	5 !	5 5	5 !	5 !	5 !	5 !	5 !	5	5	5 9	j :	5 !	5 !	5 !	5	5 :	5	5	5		5
6	6	6	6	6	6 (6	6 (6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6		6	6	6	6	6	ł	6	6	6	6	6	6	6 (6 (6 (6 6	; (6 6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6 (6 (6 6	6 6	5 (6 6	5 (6 (5 (6 (5 1	6 1	6 (6 (5 (5 (6 (5	6	6 (6	6	6	•	;
1	7	1	1	1	1	7	7	h	7	7	7	7	7	7	1		7	7	7	7	7	7	1	7	1	7		1	7	7	7	7	7	7		7	1	7	7	1	7	17	17	11	11	1	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	11	11	1	11	1	1			1	7	7	1	1	1	1	1	7	1	1	1	7	1	1
8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8 8	1	8	8	8	8	8		8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8		8	8	8	8	8		8	8	8	8	8 1	8 1	8	3 8	1	1	1	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8 1	8 8	8	3 1	3 8	3 1	8 1	3 () (3	8	8	8 1	3 1	3 1	8 1	8 1	8	8 (8	8	8	1	3
9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9 9		9	9	9	9	9	9		9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	ļ	ļ	9	9	9	9	9	9	9 34	9	9	9	9	9	9	9 9	9 9	9 9	99) 9) (9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9 9	9 9	99) (3 9	3 9) !) () {) !	9 :	9 9	9 9	9 9] !	9 9	9 9	9	9 (9	9 78	9	1	}





• Figure 23. Cards Punched From Data Sheet in Figure 22

IBM 534 Model 3 Card Punch

An IBM 534 Card Punch, cable-connected to the 1232, punches information from data sheets into 80-column cards. Punching is controlled by instructions from the 534 program card and the 1232 program control sheet. The 534 can also be used as an independent card punch.

Information is punched on a mark position digit value for punch digit basis. If more than three marks are read for punching into one card column, a 12-punch is substituted for the marked digit values.

An 11-punch, punched into column 81, indicates that the data sheet was not selected and that the information punched was valid. When using the Multiple Spread-Card special feature, at least one card associated with a data sheet will not have an 11-punch if the data sheet is selected, or if an error is detected.

All cards associated with a selected data sheet should be destroyed before reprocessing the data sheet.

Punch Controls

The following switches and keys on the keyboard of the 534 (Figure 24) are operative with the 1232:

- Feed Key
- Release Key
- Auto Feed Switch
- Auto Skip Dup Switch
- Auto Punch/Keypunch Switch



Figure 24. IBM 534 Keyboard

The switches on the 534 keyboard must be on when the punch is operating with the 1232. A main line switch is located under the reading table. This switch controls power to the 534 punch. When the 534 is to be used as an independent card punch, the auto punch switch must be set to KEYPUNCH.

A Punch On light, on the 534 keyboard, turns on when the 534 main line switch is turned on.

Programming

The IBM 534 has a program drum that rotates on a column-for-column basis in synchronization with both the punch and read stations. A program card is mounted on the program drum and can be punched to control 534 functions such as skipping and duplicating. Program card functions for skipping and duplicating are identical to those of the IBM 024 Card Punch. An explanation of the 024 program card codes is available in the *IBM* 024—26 *Reference Manual*.

When the program card is also to be used to control a connected IBM 1232, additional controls are used. These additional controls, punched into the program card in the columns into which data is to be punched, are:

PUNCH IN PROGRAM CARD

2

8

9

FUNCTION

Punch Master or Identification Data: Must be punched into every column in which master or identification data will be punched.

- 3 Card Number or Field Number (two columns): Must precede or follow the entire Master-Identification fields as identified by a 2-punch in the program card.
- 6 Sync-Check Card Column: This card column must coincide with the sync-check word on the data sheet.
 - Sheet Feed: Causes 1232 sheet feed. When either the Multiple Spread-Card or Unit Record Card feature is being used, this instruction is not needed and should not be used.

Punch Detail Data: Must be punched in every column in which detail data is to be punched. Unless one of the multiple-card features is used, information is punched into the card in the same sequence as read from the data sheet.

When either the Multiple Spread-Card or Unit Record Card special feature is installed, identification data can be punched separately. Identification data, as a class of data, can be programmed in the 534 to punch out entirely before any detail data is punched, regardless of the intermixing of the data on the data sheet. Detail data must be the last data punched from the 1232 data sheet.

IBM 1231 Throughput

Document format has little effect on throughput for the 1231 on-line machine. A carefully-selected 1231 document format can, however, minimize the number of computer program steps and the time required to assemble or reorganize the data in storage. Note that the data sheet reads left word, right word, left word, etc. If possible, like data should be grouped and transferred in sequence to computer storage.

IBM 1232/534 Throughput

The data sheet throughput and the number of cards produced per hour by the 1232/534 system depends upon:

- 1. Location and density of marks on the data sheet.
- 2. The number of card columns to be punched.
- 3. The number of cards to be punched for each data sheet. (Multiple Spread-Card or Unit Record Card features.)

Use of the following guides will help to maintain maximum data-sheet and punched-card throughput:

- 1. Data to be read by the 1232 should be located as near the top of the data sheet as possible. This eliminates paper-feeding time before punching can begin.
- 2. Data should be arranged as compactly (consecutive words) as possible. This eliminates punch-waiting time between card columns.
- 3. Read data should not be intermixed with data not to be read. For example; all fields not intended for reading (space for handwritten material), should be located below the fields to be read.
- 4. Punch on a word basis rather than on a segment basis whenever possible; fewer card columns are punched.

To assist in pre-installation planning, Figures 25 through 29 have been prepared as typical examples of 1232/534 throughput. The throughput rates in these graphs are based on the following assumptions:

- 1. The density of the marks on the data sheet is such that after punching has begun no interruption will occur.
- 2. Punching is not allowed until a data sheet has been recognized as a detail data sheet (as opposed to a master-mark data sheet).

3. Sheet Feed will be programmed in the 534 program card in the last card column to be punched (Figure 25 only).



Figure 25. 1232/534 Throughput-One Card Per Data Sheet



Figure 26. 1232/534 Throughput-Two Cards Per Data Sheet

4. The ratio of master-mark data sheets to detail data sheets is insignificant; the time consumed in reading master-mark data sheets is small enough that overall throughput rates will not be materially affected.



Figure 27. 1232/534 Throughput-Three Cards Per Data Sheet



Figure 28. 1232/534 Throughput-Four Cards Per Data Sheet



Figure 29. 1232/534 Throughput-Unit Record Card Feature

Document Design and Specifications

Certain guides must be followed in the design of data sheets for use in the IBM 1231 and 1232 Optical Mark Page Readers. These guides are divided into two main groups: those required for proper machine function, and those that facilitate efficient document design.

Specifications

The following specifications concern primarily the printing of documents; paper quality and weight, ink requirements, printing registration tolerances, etc. However; these specifications should also be considered by the data-sheet designer. His layout must not violate the document specifications.

NOTE: All reflectance readings should be measured with a Kidder Mark Tester* (MR8) or equivalent.

Paper Requirements

SIZE: $8 \ 1/2'' \pm .015''$ by $11'' \pm .025''$.

THICKNESS: .0045" to .0050".

WEIGHT: 20 lb. $\pm 5\%$ (17" x 22" - 500 sheets).

CONTENT: 100% bleached chemical woodpulp. MOISTURE EXPANSIVITY: .20% cross direction and .07% machine direction maximums using TAPPI** T 447m test.

REFLECTANCE: The reflectance reading must be at least 50 millivolts.

OPACITY: When reflectance measurements are made from the back of the document, the difference in reflectance between a printed and a non-printed area should not exceed 7 millivolts.

TWO-SIDE PRINTING: Documents printed on both sides must maintain the same right-hand reference edge. These documents must be printed in tumble mode.

CORNER CUT: Paper documents to be read by the IBM 1231 and 1232 should have an upper right-hand corner cut. This corner cut should be at an angle of $30^{\circ} \pm 2^{\circ}$ relative to the right-hand edge of the document. The length of the cut along the top edge must

be .215" \pm .025". Additional cuts are required if documents printed on both sides are used.

Burst Continuous Forms

Continuous forms that are used (after bursting) as input to either the IBM 1231 or the IBM 1232 must conform to the requirements shown in Figure 30 in addition to the requirements for regular paper forms. CORNER CUT

Documents should have a corner cut in upper-right

corner. The corner cut should be at an angle of 30° relative to the right edge of the document. The length of the corner cut along the top edge must be .215" $\pm .025$ ". The top of the corner cut can end at the top edge of the document or may extend a maximum of .030" into the bottom of the document above. The right edge of the corner cut can end at the right edge of the document or may extend into the adjacent carrier strip a maximum of .046".

PERFORATIONS

Burst continuous forms must be grain long with cross perforations of either 6 or 8 cuts per inch with .032" ties. All running (vertical) perforations must be four cuts per inch with .032" ties. The leading edge must be free of "hang-on" and creases or fold marks. Neither vertical perforations nor the bottom cross perforations can have hang-on that exceeds $1/16" \times 1"$ in area. Hang-on must not occur more than once every 25 documents.

CARRIER STRIPS

Measured from center to center, the distance between any two adjacent carrier strip holes must be $.500'' \pm .005''$.

If cutters are used to remove carrier strips during a bursting operation, care must be taken to maintain the $8 \ 1/2'' = .015''$ document width.

SKEW REQUIREMENT

When a straight line is drawn perpendicular to the right edge of any document, tangent to the top edge of one of the marking positions of any row, the maximum vertical distance between the top edge of any other marking position in that row and this perpendicular line should be .010".

NOTE: The perpendicular line is referred to throughout this publication as the "marking line".

DOCUMENT TO DOCUMENT DIMENSIONS

The vertical distance between corresponding marking positions on vertically adjacent forms is 11.000''. The vertical distance between the top carrier strip hole (top edge of hole) and the first marking line must be within $\pm .015''$ and be consistent from document to document. The $\pm .010''$ skew tolerance must be included within this .015'' tolerance.

If the form is designed with four rows to the inch, every other row should have the same measurement

^{*}Kidder Press Co., Dover, New Hampshire

^{**}Technical Association of the Pulp and Paper Industry



• Figure 30. Continuous Forms Dimensions

between the top of the carrier hole and the relative marking line, and be subject to the same tolerance as the first marking line.

Ink Requirements

Timing marks must be printed on the data sheet in non-reflective ink. Black is recommended. The reflectance reading must not exceed 30 millivolts.

Information that is not to be read by the 1231/1232 must be printed in reflective ink. An ink reflectance of at least 48 millivolts is required. The reflectance of the ink must not vary more than 7 millivolts from the reflectance of the paper.

No non-reflective printing or writing should be contained within an area from 1/8'' above to 1/8'' below a word that is programmed to read.

Document Format Requirements

The maximum number of mark positions on any one side of a document is 1000. To obtain this maximum number, the rows of words on the data sheet must be printed five to the inch (vertically). If the rows are printed four to the inch, 800 is the maximum number of mark positions.

Whenever a new data sheet is to be designed for use by the 1231/1232, three standard layout forms are available for use as design guides. Form X20-8043 is designed with five rows per inch; Form X20-8044 is designed with four rows per inch; and X20-8045 is designed with three rows per inch. Design of answer sheets for test scoring should use Forms X20-8040, X20-8041, or X20-8042. Any combination of these forms may be employed as long as the timing marks maintain their relationship to the row and the rows are never printed closer than the minimum of .200" spacing. Two timing marks should be printed for every row of words; the timing marks are used to trigger the read head from odd word to even word to odd word, etc.

No marks, other than timing marks, should be present in the timing mark area. A reading of an extra timing mark, or failure to read a timing mark, would cause the read heads to lose synchronism with the data sheet words (Reading would take place between the rows rather than on the rows).

NOTE: To familiarize persons not aware of proper marking techniques, instructions of the following nature should be printed on all data sheets:

Make your marks with a black lead pencil. Erase completely any marks you wish to change.

Printing Requirements

The length of a timing mark must be $.156'' \pm .010''$; its width $.020'' \pm .003''$ (Figure 31). The dimensions of the master mark are $.250'' \pm .015''$ in length and .020'' $\pm .003''$ in width. Other horizontal dimensions of the data sheet are shown in Figure 32.

The outline of a mark position measures $.190'' \pm .010''$ in length. The vertical distance between the top edges of two outlining guide lines of a mark position should be $.032'' \pm .005''$ (Figure 33). The line width of the guide lines should be .005'' to .008''.



Figure 31. Timing Mark and Master Mark Dimensions

A segment is composed of five, data-mark positions. The length of a segment is $1.510'' \pm .005''$. All segment dimensions are shown in Figure 34: All words must be perpendicular to the reference edge (Figure 35), and must be vertically spaced at least $.200'' \pm .005''$ apart.

TWO-SIDE PRINTING

Both sides of a document can be used; however, only one side can be scanned during a single pass through the reader.

Documents printed on both sides must maintain the same right-hand reference edge. Thus, all documents must be printed in tumble mode. When looking through a document, all response positions and timing marks should coincide.

An additional and identical corner cut is required when both sides of a document are used. Therefore, two corners will be cut; the upper right and the lower right. A third corner cut is recommended in the upper left-hand corner to ensure the same "up" side on all documents.

IBM 1403/1443 MARK PRINTING REQUIREMENTS

Marks (dashes) printed by an IBM 1403 Printer, Model 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, or 7; or by an IBM 1443 Printer, Model 1 or 2, can be read by the IBM 1231/1232 Optical Mark Page Readers if a special dash character is substituted for the standard dash character. For the 1443, any of the 52 character typebars or the 63 character typebar can be used. The segment containing the standard dash is replaced by a segment containing the special dash. The 13 and the 39 character typebars cannot be used. In the 1403, the standard dash characters are replaced by special dash characters.

-	Left	Segm	ent —	→		—Rig	nt Segr	ment —			—Lef	t Segn	nent —			— Rig	ht Segr	ment —	→=
		:::::						:::::									1549	±.010	
		:::::									:::::	::::::					:::::	:::::	
		:::::														:::::		.092"	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
								:::::											
:::::																	.015'		
		:::::				:::::											. 500±	.015"	
	:::::		*****					:::::					,:::: :				1.510		
				*****												Ref.	4 Pla		
		:::25																:::::	
:::::						*****	:::::	:::::	:::::		:::::				Re	- 1.90 f. 4 P		:::::	
	:		:::::	*****	:::::		:::::	:::::						····			±.007"		
:::::							*****	:::::			:	:::::						:::::	
	:::::	:::::		*****					····· L				.052"	±.011" -		:::::			
	:::::					:::::		:::::		:::::						*****	:::::		-
										6.	.032" :	±.014"	:::::				:::::		
				Г															
						:::::	:::::	:::::											=
																			=
	tolera ss oth														Pofe	ence l	 dae -		···· Ξ
•••••																:::::	iiiii		







Figure 34. Segment Dimensions

٣,

Figure 33. Mark Position Dimensions



Note: The bottom and top edge should be perpendicular to reference edge within .015" as measured at left edge.

Figure 9. Vertical Dimensions

Figure 35. Vertical Dimensions

To be usable by the 1403 or the 1443 printers, the words on the data sheet must have vertical spacing compatible to the line spacing of the printer. The maximum vertical density readable by the 1231 or the 1232 is five rows per inch. Both the 1403 and the 1443 normally print either six or eight lines to the inch; therefore, that portion of the 1231/1232 document which is to have marks printed by the printers should be printed with either three or four rows per inch. Any one document can, for instance, be printed so that the portion to have machine printed marks could be printed at four rows per inch and the balance of the document could be printed at five rows per inch. The timing marks, in this case, must be printed so that they maintain the proper relationship to the word to be read.

IBM ribbons 474635 (1403-11"), 474634 (1403-14"), 422536 (1443), or their equivalents can be used for the printing of marks in mark positions. Marks which produce a reflectance reading of 37 millivolts or less (as measured by a Kidder Mark Read Tester) can be read reliably by the 1231/1232. As the ribbon is used, the reflectance reading of the printed marks increases. Therefore, during any mark printing run, some method of monitoring the reflectance reading of the printed marks is necessary.

One method of indirectly monitoring the reflectance is to keep track of the number of lines printed by any one ribbon. The 1403 ribbons will print 150,000 lines of marks when the same mark position is marked on every row; 1,500,000 lines when only one mark position is printed per word and the marks are evenly dispersed across the word. The 1443 ribbon will print 1,200,000 *total* characters before the 37 millivolt maximum reading is reached. Each mark position requires two or three dash characters, depending on the mark position being printed.

NOTE: When reading documents that have been printed with two or more marks per segment or word, the read mode switch must be set to MULTI RESP. This setting allows all marks which fall into either area A or area B as shown in Figure 9 (see *Mark Recognition and Discrimination* section) to be read without discrimination. The MULTI RESP SEL UNC setting should not be used when reading multiple marks made by printers. When reading documents printed with one mark per word or segment, the read mode switch must be set at SING RESP.

Because the horizontal dimension between adjacent mark positions (measured center to center) is .330", and the horizontal pitch of the 1403 or 1443 printers is ten characters per inch, the printed marks will not print symmetrically within the mark positions (Figure 36). Each mark position to be marked on the 1231/1232 document must contain at least two printed dashes to ensure that a proper amount of non-reflective ink exists within the marking area of that position; some positions must contain three printed dashes to meet the nonreflective ink requirements. Three dashes are required in odd-word positions 0, 4, 6, and 9, and in even-word

positions 2, 5, and 8. See Figure 36. Printer positions 1 through 75 are assumed for purposes of illustration only. If it is desired to use other printer positions, the same relationship must be maintained between the printed dashes and the mark positions.

Setting up the printers requires that the horizontal and vertical alignment be accurate and the printing impact be correct. The procedure for setting up the 1403 or the 1443 printer is:

- 1. a. Set the 1403 print density to "A".
- b. Set the 1443 print density to "2".
- 2. a. Set the 1403 print timing dial for the proper paper thickness. The 1231/1232 document is .0045" to .0050" thick.
 - b. Adjust the 1443 paper brake for proper paper tension.
- 3. Align the 75th print position horizontally so that the right end of the printed dash is flush with the right end of the last even-word mark position guide lines. If only the odd words are to be printed, align the 29th print position dash with the right edge of response position #7.

Print Positions	1 2 3	5 6	8 9	11 12	14 15 16	21 22	24 25 26	28 29	31 32	34 35 36	41 42	44 45	47 48 49	51 52	54 55	60 61 62	64 65	67 68	70 71 72	74 - 75 -
	-			::::::									:::::	:::::	:::::		:::::			
		:4×										46140 1								
			60 ML					-					-							
				-										100.000	::::;					
										-					-					
Mark Positions	• 0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9



4. Center the dashes vertically within the mark position guide lines. At least .015" of the printed dash *must* fall within the guide lines.

Information which is not to be read by the 1231/1232 (such as customer number, salesman number, part description, etc.), although usually printed in reflective ink, can be printed in non-reflective ink at the same time that the marks are being printed in the mark positions. These rules apply:

- 1. Information must not be printed in non-reflective ink within an area extending from 1/8'' above to 1/8'' below any word which is to be read by the 1231 or the 1232.
- 2. The information must be printed at least .092" from the left edge of the nearest timing mark.

During the printing operation, check the horizontal and vertical mark printing registration. The printing registration must be carefully maintained to ensure 1231/1232 reading reliability.

Design Guides

Many factors must be considered when designing a new data sheet. The format affects items such as throughput, field checking, usage of cards, etc. The following factors should be considered:

- All documents are read left to right, top to bottom, row by row.
- Timing marks synchronize the read head with the data being read. Two timing marks are required for any row in which either or both words may be marked.
- The number of master-mark words marked on a master-mark data sheet must equal the number of card columns reserved for punching master-mark data in the card. The number of timing marks printed on the master-mark sheet must be twice as great as the number of words marked. (Only even words are read on the master-mark sheet.)
- Identification data (available with the Multiple Spread-Card or Unit Record Card features), if called for by the 534 program card, reads out in the sequence it was read, regardless of whether or not it was mixed with detail data when read from the data sheet.
- When the Segmented Word feature is installed on a 1232 (standard on a 1231), information can be read and punched on a segment basis. One, neither, or both segments of any word on the data sheet may be programmed to read. Master-mark data and identification data always punch on a word per column basis, regardless of the setting of the punch mode switch.

- Field checking is controlled by switches. Start-ofchecking control codes (stored from the program control sheet) determine which set of field checking switches is to be used for checking the field. Any of the three sets of field checking switches can be programmed, on the program control sheet, to be active in the sequence necessary for processing the data sheet.
- Detail data must be the last data punched (1232/ 534). Whenever two or more choices are given as response to a question or item, marks should be kept within one segment or word so that the field check switches can check for any or all select conditions.
- In applications where it may be necessary to mark long series of numbers on a data sheet, it is helpful to overprint a shadow line (a screened stripe) on every other row. This enables the person marking the sheet to visually scan each row for a mark.

Document Gage

A document inspection gage (Figure 37), is available for checking printing alignment on a data sheet. The procedure for using the gage is:

- 1. Position right edge of document against reference edge of gage, and bottom edge of document against document length reference line on gage. Check that:
 - a. Left edge of timing mark is under timing mark skew tolerance line.
 - b. Left edge of document is under document width tolerance line.
 - c. Top edge of document is under or between document length tolerance lines.
- 2. With document still positioned against gage reference edge, slide document as needed to check that:
 - a. Top and bottom edges of document are within document squareness tolerance lines.
 - b. Corner-cut of document is under angular and width corner-cut tolerance line.
 - c. Top edges of all response positions in a horizontal row fall between response skew tolerance lines.
 - d. Top of form is under or between document length tolerance lines when top edges of first and second word response positions are under first response reference lines. Top edge of first two timing marks should fall under the two timing mark spacing lines near corner-cut tolerance line.
 - e. Top edges of last two word-response positions fall under or between first-last response tolerance lines when top edges of first two word-response positions are under first response reference lines.



Figure 37. Document Gage

49

- f. Top edges of timing marks fall under two timing mark spacing tolerance lines on gage when top edge of response position is between response skew tolerance lines (as reference). Response spacing can also be checked at this time.
- g. With the right edge of the data sheet against the <u>ref</u>erence edge of the gage and the top control timing mark (1230) aligned with the fine line timing mark on the gage, the top of the adjacent timing marks must fall under the timing marks on the gage.
- 3. Reposition document so left edge of timing marks just touch the timing mark reference line. Check that:
 - a. Edges of printed response positions fall under appropriate tolerance zone lines. This checks

odd and even word tolerances (right edge of 5th and 10th response positions in odd and even words).

- b. Right edge of timing mark falls under timing mark length tolerance line.
- 4. Align right edge of fifth or tenth response position under reference line of odd word tolerance zone. Check that:
 - a. Right edge of first four response positions of the half word are under respective half word tolerance zone line.
 - b. Left edge of response position is under response length tolerance line when right edge of response position is under reference line (near top of gage).

Index

Alphabetic Coding Auto Feed Switch, 534	•••	••••	 		19 .38
Auto Punch/Keypunch Switch, 534	• •				38
Auto Skip/Dup Switch, 534					
Bits Burst Continuous Forms					
Card Number					
Card Punch, 534					
Carrier Strips			• • • •		42
Check Length Switches					
Computer Processing					
Computer Storage Continuous Feed Mode					
Controls					
Control Timing Mark Switch					
Corner Cut.					
Data Flow				13,	14
Data Sheet					
Delay Line					
Design Guides, Document					
Detail Data Digit Value		14,	32,	34,	48
Document Cycle					
Document Design and Specification					
Document Dimensions					
Document Format Requirements					
Document Gage					
Document Path					
Documents					,
End-Of-Field Marks					
End-Of-Group Marks					
Even Words					
Feed and Transport Mechanism					
Feed Check Light.					
Feed Hopper				10,	28
Feed Key, 534					
Feed Mode Switch					
Feed Rolls					
IBM 1232/534 Synchronization Check				-	
IBM 1232/534 Synchronization Check					
Ink Requirements					
Keyboard, 534					
Keys and Switches.					
Layout Forms					
Lights					
Mark Recognition and Discrimination					12
Mark Positions					
Mark-Printing Requirements, 1403/1443					
Marks					
Master Data Sheet					
Master Mark Feature	•••	15,	14,	22	31
Master Mark Switch					
Message Format				14,	15
Moisture Expansivity					
Multi-Marks					
Multiple Spread Card Feature			-	-	
Non-Reflective Inks					8

Norma	l Stacker		11,	26
Odd W	Vords			. 8
	mand Feed Mode			
	e Program Instructions			
	e Systems Programming			
Operat	ing Procedures			. 27
Paper 1	Requirements			. 42
	Checks			
	tions			
Photoc	ell			. 12
	nal Marks			
	g Requirements			
	Check Light			
	ing, Computer			
	m Card, 534			
	m Control Sheet			
	m Load Cycle			
	m Load Key			
	mming			
	Check Light			
	Controls			
	Mode Switch			
	On Light			
	Program Codes			
	g			
	nstruction			
	Aode Switches			
	Jnit			
	Sel Doc Light			
	ance			
	ive Ink			
	Key			
	Procedures			
	nted Word Feature			
	nts			
	Condition Switches			
Selecto	r Station and Stackers	• • • • •	••••	. 11
	Stacker			
	534			
	1231			
	1232			
	'eed Lequirements			
	Card Features			
-				
	Features			
	Card			
	ey			
	ey			
	Stopped Light.			
•				
	hput, 1231			
	hput, 1232/534			
	Mark Check Switch			
	Marks			
-	ort			
	de Printing			
Uncerta	ainty		.13,	21
Unit R	ecord Card Feature	16	, 22,	34
Unit R	ecord Card Switch			21
Words	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	R	12	22
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	0	, 14,	<u> </u>

Manual Name:	IBM 1231, 1232 Optical	Mark Page Reade	rs	Form No. A21-9012-3
•	Is the material: Easy to read? Well organized? Fully covered? Clearly explained? Well illustrated?	Yes	Satisfactory	No
•	How did you use this publica	ition?		
	As an introduction to the s For additional knowledge of	ubject		
•	Which of the following terms	best describes your jo	b?	
	Customer Personnel	,IBM Personnel		
	ManagerImage: Systems AnalystSystems AnalystImage: Systems AnalystOperatorImage: Systems AnalystProgrammerImage: Systems AnalystTraineeImage: Systems AnalystOtherImage: Systems Analyst	Customer Engineer Instructor Sales Representative Systems Engineer Trainee Other		
•	Check specific comment (if a	ny) and explain in the	e space below:	
	(Give page number) Suggested Change (Pa Error (Page)	•	uggested Additi uggested Deletio	
	Explanation:			

Tear Along Line

Ì

| | | | Space is available on the other side of this page for additional comments. Thank you for your cooperation.

,s



Staple

IBM 1231, 1232 Printed in U.S.A. MILT-V012-3